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* REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS =

"'Stemel Manufacturmg Corporatlon
‘Gateway. Business Park - ¥
Bamo Javalera, Gen Trlas' C 'vrte

U ;'_We have audrted the accomp ymg consohdated ﬁnancral statements of Stemel Manufacturmg :

S Corporatlon and Subsidiaries; which comprise’ ‘the consolidated statement of financial position as” -
at December 31; 2013 and the cansolidated statement of comprehensrve income, consohdated '

- statement of changes in capltal deficlency and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year -

- . thenended, and notes, comprising a summary of srgmﬁcant accounting polrcnes and other

SR explanatory mformatlon* : L

_ Management s Responsrbtlny for the Consohdated Fmanczal Statemems

fManagement is responsnble fi the preparatron and farr presentatlon of these consohdated
- - financial statements in accordance with Phlllppme Flnanclal Reporting Standards and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated - -
' fi nancral statements that are free ﬁom matenal mrsstatement, whether due to fraud or error ‘

'lAudttors Responszbthty |

o '_'-fAOur responsnbr ity i 1s 0 express an oplmon on these chnso 1dated ﬂnancral statements based on-
. our audit. We conducted our aud_xt in accordance with Phlhppme Standards on Auditing. Those
- standards require that we complv with ethical requlrements ‘and plan and perfoml the audit to
- obtain reasonable assurance_a out whether the consolldated financial statements are free from
i -matenal mlsstatement : : E :

o -An audxt mvolves performmg pro;.edures to obtam audnt ev1dence about the amounts and
. disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
. auditors’ _|udgment mcludmg the assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the

- consolidated firiancial statements; whether dué to fraud or error. In’ makmg those risk '’
* assessments, the auditors consrder internal control rel evant to the entity’s preparation and farr
o presentatton of the consohdated ﬁnanclal statements in order to desxgn audlt procedures that are
approprlate in the clrcumstances but not for the purpose of ‘expressing an opinion on the o
- effectiveness of the entity’s mternal control.-An audit also includes evaluatlng the v oo
ppropnateness of accountmg pohcles used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made'-‘
by management as well as evaluatmg the overall presentatron of the consohdated financlal o
':-‘statements s : o : Co

o basns for our audrt oplmon.




: “'.Opmron :

. consolidated financial posrtron ‘of Steniel Manufacturmg Corporation and Subsidiaries as at -

-

In our opmron the consohdated financial statements present falrly, in all materral respects the '

December 31, 2013 and 1ts consohdated ﬁnancral performance and 1ts consolldated cash ﬂows

L Wxthout quahfymg our opinion, we draw attentron to Note;l to the consolrdated ﬁnancral S
: '_--statements The Group has temporarlly ceased its operatlons and has deficit of P1,658,447 and :
' P1,584,158 as at° December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively, The, deficit further increased when - -
. the operatmg subsrdrary of the Group was sold in'2013. ‘These condltlons, among others, indicate o

* the existence of a material uncertamty which may cast srgmﬁcant doubt about the Group’s ability 7 "~
to continue as a going concern. The consolidated financial statements ‘have been preparedona v
going concern basis, ‘which’ assumes that the Group \ wr]l continue in existence. The validity of this * .-

- assumption is dependent upon the Group s ability to meet its ﬁnancmg requlrements ona

- _ continuing basis and the success of its future operatlons in line with the provisions of the -

i Other Matter

- the’ years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 (not presented herem) were audited by another

' restructuring plan as discussed in Note 1. We conducted sufficient audit procedures to verify the : i
- validity of the aforementloned plan. The ; accompanymg consolidated financial statements do not o S
K mclude any ad_|ustm ’nt that might result from the outcome of thlS uncertamty '

- The consolrdated financial statements of Stemel Manufactunng Corporatron"'and Subsrdrarres for -

‘auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on October 22,2013. As. part
of our audit of the 2013 consolrdated financial statements we also audited the adjustments
- described in Note 3 that were applred to the 2012 consolidated ﬁnancral statements and the .
“consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,2011 to come up with the
~ consolidated statement of ﬁnancral position as at January 1,2012 presented herein as T
E correspcndmg ﬁgures In our opinion, such adjustments are appropnate and have been properly -

- .apphed We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any. procedures to the 2012 and 2011

consolidated ﬁnancral statements of Steniel Manufacturing Corporatlon and Subsidiaries other

.. than with respect to the adjustments, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other . . S

o form of assurance on the 2012 and 2011 consolldated ﬁnancral ements taken asa whole o -. . |

N Issued May 9'20 13'~vahd until May 8, 2016
“RTR No4225138MCT . |

ls‘Sued wJiigl_r\ar_\(.2~,‘2’014 .at Makatl Crty

Apnl 9, 2014 BT
Makatl Clty, Metro Mamla
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STENIEL MANUFACTURING CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Steniel Manufacturing Corporation and Subsidiaries (the
Company), is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements as at and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, including the additional
components attached therein, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework
indicated therein. This responsibility includes designing and implementing internal controls
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and
submits the same to the stockholders.

R.G. Manabat & Co. and Isla Lipana & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the
stockholders for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, have examined the
consolidated financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in their reports to the (stockholders or members), have expressed their opinion on
the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination.

im

Nix ;
an of the Board

Delma P. BerrﬁW

President/CEO

Signed this 9th day of April 2014
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STENIEL MANUFACTURING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2013
(With Comparative Figures for 2012)
(Amounts in Thousands)

December 31 January 1
2012 2012
As restated As restated
Note 2013 (Note 3) (Note 3)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 5 P1,604 P17,117 P7,049
Receivables - net 6,15 183,032 186,483 99,650
Inventories 7,17 - 172,401 249,394
Prepaid expenses and other curreat
assets 8 117,622 125,204 139,067
302,258 501,205 495,160
Assets held-for-sale 9 271,874 216,677 230,630
Total Current Assets 574,132 717,882 725,790
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment - net 10 17,845 48,971 38,418
Available-for-sale financial assets 11 10,861 961 961
Other noncurrent assets 20 70,942 92,244
Total Noncurrent Assets 28,726 120,874 131,623
P602,858 P838,756 P857,413
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
DEFICIENCY
Current Liabilities
Trade payables and other current
liabilities 12 P277,597 P434,473 P463,102
Payable to government agencies 775 502 497
Total Current Liabilities 278,372 434,975 463,599
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term borrowings 13 568,301 568,301 568,419
Retirement benefits liability 3 14 - 3,314 2,662
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 568,301 571,615 571,081
Total Liabilities 846,673 1,006,590 1,034,680
Capital Deficiency
Capital stock 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 414,632 414,632 414,632
Reserve for retirement benefits
liability - 1,692 2,436
Deficit (1,658,447) (1,584,158) (1,594,335)
Total Capital Deficiency (243,815) (167,834) (177,267)
P602,858 P838,756 P857,413

e Al ndne bin thinm ¥nsvan Fidstnd Tivvrrmnninl Cortsmenfo
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STENIEL MANUFACTURING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(With Comparative Figures for 2012 and 2011)

(Amounts in Thousands)

December 31
2012 2011
As restated As restated
Note 2013 (Note 3) (Note 3)
REVENUES
Product sales P710,658 P531,591 P569,935
Service income 16 15,649 48,858 41,348
TOTAL REVENUES 726,307 580,449 611,283
COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES 17 {664,986) (546,683) (598,280)
GROSS PROFIT 61,321 33,766 13,003
OPERATING EXPENSES 18 (43,004) (37,814) (36,690)
OTHER EXPENSES - Net 19 (84,340) 10,294 311,929
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
PROVISION FOR INCOME
TAX (66,023) 6,246 288,242
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
(BENEFIT) 20 10,147 (3,931) 273
NET INCOME (LOSS) ®76,170) P10,177 P287,969
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS)
Item that will never be
reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit
obligation 270 (1,064) 3,480
Income tax benefit (expense) (81 320 (1,044)
3 189 (744) 2,436
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS) (P75,981) P9,433 P290,405
Basic and Diluted Earnings
(Loss) Per Common Share 21 (P0.0762) P0.0101 P0.02880

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



STENIEL MANUFACTURING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES -~~~
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITAL DEFICIENCY
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013 o
(Wlth Comparative Figures for 2012'and 2011) "
(Amounts in Thousands except par value

Capltal Stock A
P1 par value R eserve for'_' :
‘Authorized itional" “Retirement "~ - o
+. . andIssued- - Paid-in "~ Benefits : LT o ~Total & -
SIS e 1,000, ooo 000 Shares =" .7 Capital’ 2 Liability ‘Deficit 7" Equity 7
‘As at January 1, 2013 as restated R R R T R o Pl 000 000 P4l4,6'¥2.’ LT i P69 e i (P1,584,158) - - - (P167,834)

‘Net loss for the year, = - e g e e e L T (16190) T a5, 170)
Remeasurementsofdefmedbeneﬁtoblnganon R T A T T It G SR T AT DI L 189

#5(75,981) = - .

. Total comprehensive income (loss) for the y year i kel ind

“Transactions with the owners of the Group
Disposal of a subsidiary -~ : L

“As at December 31,2013~

:g(i»zﬁ,h:s’)*j
L @179,703) ¢

Asat January 1, 2012 as prevxously reportcd R E
: Adjustment due to Phnhppme Accountmg Standardji
“(PASY19 '

As at January 1,2012; asrestated. . oo

o (P1,594,335)
SRR : 2436 S
L. (1,594,335) 0 < (171,267)

Netincome fortheyear i i 0 e ST e D e e e e ST 10T
'Remeasurements of deﬁnedbeneftobhggtlon' R - T et o T (AR T T e e T i (T 44)
L_Total_comprehenswe income (loss) for the year'i-"_';' UL e . S w R - SR (744)-_f;t;_-'- 10,177 TS e 9,433

“Asat December 31,2012, asrestated - - . . - ... o . PLO0O000 . . . PAI4632. <. - LPL692 . . - (PL,584,158) ... - (P167,834)

1,000,000 5 T 414,632 0

—

Forward . - .. . -




© Capital Stock - © -
~Plparvalue .- o T
. Authorized ’- i;‘ Additional .
.. v and Issued < 7.1 Paid-in’
1,000,000,000 Shares - Capital C

PLO00,000 it B palag3R i

" Reserve for '
" Retirement:: .
" Benefits .
: Llablhty :

S e L G Equlty-.
"'Asat"’Jénuaryx 2011 " (P467,672)
-Net income for the year - T 287,969
» Remeasurements of deﬁned bcneﬁt obhgatxon e . TR Ho : i ik . i 2,436 07

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the yearf LT e e T e e T 436 T 281, 969' S '(290,405 '

(P1,882,304)" -
oy "'287 99 "

~'As at December 31, 2011, asrestated - el DI R p1000,000 T T PALA,632 T T i poa36” L Y (P1,504,335) . L (P171,26T)

- See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,




STENIEL MANUFACTURING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(With Comparative Figures for 2012 and 2011)

(Amounts in Thousands)

2012 2011
As restated As restated
Note 2013 (Note 3) (Note 3)
CASHFLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax (P66,023) P6,246 P288,242
Adjustments for:
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 19 135,107 - -
Depreciation 17,18 13,439 8,760 10,835
Provision for impairment
(reversal of) losses on
receivables 6 1,283 2,619 (863)
Retirement benefit expense 514 68 458
Gain on condonation of third
party payables/borrowings - - (307,686)
Write-off of accruals 19 (32,553) (3,320) (1,40D)
Reversal of long-outstanding
trade payables - (2,307) -
Interest income - €1)) (24)
Provision for (reversal of)
inventory write-down - 675 -
Gain on sale of property and
equipment and investment - 33 -
Write-off prepaid taxes and
asset-held-for-sale - 13,980 -
Operating income (loss) before
working capital changes 51,767 26,657 (10,439)
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables ' 22,168 (82,264) 7,430
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets 8,302 29,347 3,894
Inventories - 76,318 (186,706)
Increase (decrease) in trade
payable and other current
liabilities (112,055) (31,807 194,320
Cash generated from (absorbed by)
operations (29,818) 18,251 8,499
Interest received - 31 24
Pension benefits paid - (480) -
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities (29,818) 17,802 8,523

Forward



S 2012
.- Asrestated

T 2011
As restated

= CASH FLOWS FROM
o Proceeds from sale ofa P

E Acqulsmon of avallable-for-sale

| Addrtrons to property and "

- . Increase in assets held-for-s le
T _Decrease in other noncurren
" receivables s

INVESTNG ACTIVITIES

- subsidiary

‘assets

‘equipment iU L C

j Proceeds from sale of property

“and equlpment

. Note: .

Tk ero 000

20130

(9,900) -

sy

33

(Note 3) . . (Note 3) " o

2736

o Net cash provrded by (used m)

mvestmg activities

e

asar

o ;"?NET INCREASE

_ CASH AT BE“GINN]NG OF .

(DECREASE) lN CASH R

. YEAR .

7,049

14,000

o 'CASHATEND OFYEAR s L PL604 )

CIP17,117

P49

" See Notes to the Cohsbli'(ia(ed Fi Wal S_tq_temerm'.




o STENIEL MANUFACTURING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES S
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Wlth Comparatlve Frgures for 2012 and 201 1) PR

e (AmountsmThousands) 5 EERNE

S l.. Reportmg Entlty

__ Stemel Manufacturmg Corporatlon (STN or. the “Compan ”) was mcorporated and
Lo reglstercd _with - the Philippine Securities -and “Exchange - Commxssron (SEC)-on = .1~
" September 13, 1963 The Company and its subs1d1arres (the “Group)” are engaged inthe = -

" -manufacturing, processing, and selling of all kinds of paper products, paper board and @
© . corrugated carton containers, and all other alhed products and processes The Company RIS TS

' '-t::dshstedmthe Phxhppme Stock Exchange Inc (PSE) S L

T -The Company is consrdered a publlc company under Part I Scct10n2A (1) of the Secuntles L
. "Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68,.as ‘amended on October 20, 2011, whrch among others, . .
- defines . a publlc corporation as . any corporatxon with total assets of ° ‘more than R
_ “at least P50 million and having 200 or more' shareholders each of which hold at least 100" -
- shares of its equxty ‘securities is also. covered by additional - requlrements under W
... SRC Rule. 68, as amended, Part TI.- As at December 31, 2013 '2012° and 2011, the e

L '.",.Followmg a declsxon made by the Board of ‘Dlrectors in*1996 to reorgamze the Group,
. the Company ceased ‘manufacturing operatlons in June'1997."As a result,” reorganlzatlon
. .of.the Group'was‘car'ried outand,,cdmpleted N_vith'the Company.’s.principal%actlvity now .

e The ultimate parent of the Company is Steniel (Netherlands) Holdings B.V. (SNHBV), "
i ® jmcorporated in Amsterdam and the reglstered owner of 82 2716% of the shares of the -
N -".'_Company ‘prior to. restru\,tunng of the loan : : mmg 17 7 84% of the‘-_f'
o 'shares are w1dely held S R
T Consequent to the restmcturmg of the loan in 2010, remammg unissued share capltal of SRERLSERS
S L the Company totalmg 123,818 shares- were issued to Roxburgh Investment Limitedto -~ - .
- =" reduce the Company s ‘outstanding debts (Note 13). *As a result; Roxburgh Investment = == .=~
. Limited now owns 12.3818% of the Company, while the ownership. of SNHBV as well S et
 “as that of the publlc have been reduced to 72 0849% and 15 5333%, respectnvely R
o On January 18 2012 the maJorlty and mmorrty shareholders of SNI-IBV entered mto a
. Share Purchase Agreement with Right Total Investments L1m1ted (nght Total; a limited .
“ " liability company incorporated in British Vrrgm Islands ‘as an investment company), to’ -~ .
" purchase up to 100% of the issued and outstandmg shares of SNHBV. ‘With this sale of .
shares by SNHBYV, Right Total is now the owner of the 72 084 9% shares of the CompanyA R
o consequently makmg it 1ts ultlmate holdmg company R 5 N -




e

On January 25, 2012, the Company received a tender offer report from Right Total to
purchase the 279,151,088 shares of minority investing public or 27.92% of the total
issued shares at a price of P0.0012 per share or an aggregate price of P334.9 million. On
February 25, 2012, only a total of 2,115,692 common shares were tendered in the Tender
Offer and accepted by Right Total, constituting 0.0021% of the total outstanding share
capital of the Company. On March 8, 2612, payment for the Tendered Shares was
delivered to the relevant broker participants on behalf of interested parties and there was
a transfer to Right Total of only 0.76% of the minority shares. Such accepted tender
offer did not significantly change the percentage ownership of the minority investing
public.

The Company’s registered address and principal office is located at Gateway Business
Park, Barrio Javalera, Gen. Trias, Cavite, Philippines.

Group Structure
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company
and the following subsidiaries incorporated in the Philippines.

Percent of Ownership

2013 2012
Steniel Cavite Packaging Corporation (SCPC) 100 100
Treasure Packaging Corporation (TPC) 100 100
Steniel Mindanao Packaging Corporation {SMPC) - 100

SCPC

The business operations of SCPC gradually slowed down in 2006. The temporary
cessation of the plant’s operation was approved by SCPC’s Board of Directors (BOD) on
March 27, 2007 in view of the continued losses incurred since its incorporation in
addition to difficult economic and business conditions. Its operations are now limited to
leasing its existing assets to third parties.

In October 2011, following the provisions cf the Amended Omnibus Agreement between
STN with its major creditors/lenders, SCPC submitted a merger application with SEC to
absorb three (3) dormant subsidiaries namely Metroplas Packaging Products Corporation
(MPPC), Metro Paper and Packaging Products, Inc. (MPPPI) and Steniel Carton System
Corporation (SCSC), using June 30, 2011 financial statements, with the Company as the
surviving entity. Prior to the merger with SCPC, MPPC, MPPI and SCSC are 100%
owned by STN. This transaction was approved by the respective Companies® Board of
Directors and Sharsholders in October 2011.

On March 2, 2012, the SEC approved the certificate of filing of the articles and plan of
merger, which documents were received by the Company on July 31, 2012. All the
financial data presented for the periods prior to the merger have been restated to reflect
the combined financial statements of the absorbed corporation as though the merger had
occurred at the beginning of 2010. The effects of the Company’s equity in the absorbed
corporations, and intercompany receivables and payables were eliminated resulting in the
combined results of operations.

The combined results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2011, which support
the accompanying statements of total comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2011, include the results of operations of the absorbed corporations and of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2011 as if the entities had always been

combined.




. the Board of Directors b(BOD) of- TNkapproved the sale of 1ts

s 100% ownerslup or 9 249 995 _common.shares in the SMPC to":the followmg entmes and _

..}' mdrvrduals

o : o Percentage of
Number of Shares : Ownershrp

e Greenkraﬁ Corporatron LT -3,083,947 - 3334%
| Corbox Corporation - s 2,774,999 5 = s ...30.00% ey
_.“.- |_Goldenbales Corporatlon ' v, 774 999 0 3000%
: .| Clement Chua - | - - 333% -
' Rex Chua 3 33% R

o ?.The Company alsohada 39.71% interest in Stemel Land Corporatron (SLC) In 2010 aIl
f the ownershrp mterest of TPC and STN . were assigned to Greenkraft Corporation, a
company; 1ncorporated in the. Phrhppmes (Note -9) The re; mmg mterest of SCPC in .

- j.?SLc is 22, 61%Aas tDecember31 2013 and201

- In. relatron" to th condonatlon of the Company s borrowmgs by its major credrtors in-
'2011as : discussed “in “Note 13 the’ Company “also - condoned its- advances to' SCPC .

- _,ﬂ“amountmg to. P294 6 million' and Pl13.1 mrlhon'for the reversal of accrued mterest mz'

P assumes that the Group wrll contmue m exrstence

in relation to the 2-year grace penod provrd by its credltors e -

In a meetmg held‘on January 18” 2012 ‘the - Boar of Drreetors' of STN approved the -

conversion ' of addltlonal advances made to SCPC “to ‘share prermum effectrve- S

increased; When ithe® operatmg subsrdlary of the: Group -was sold in 2013 - These:_} GEiy

L condltlons, among others, indicate the exrstence of a material. uncertamty Wthh may cast _,f e

‘significant “doubt . about the ‘Group’s ', abrhty to continue as a going concern. The. ' - "
. consolidated financial statements have been prepared : _mg concern basrs whrch_




- Due to the workmg caprtal drain- experrenced by=the'Group as a result of prlor debt' o
.. service payments and the difficult business and economic conditions dunng the period, . '
the Group found it difficult to sustam further payments of debt while at the same time ®
“ensuring continued- operatlons The Company failed to’ settle its outstandmg short-term B
and long-term loans which were supposed to mature at vanous dates in 2004, 2005 and - *
2006 and was declared’ by the lending banks in default on May 25,2006. Subsequently W
~until 2009 the lendmg banks assigned and sold their respectrve outstanding loan balances -
*to various; third pai -On October :14,: 2010 ‘one of the new: lenders, Greenkraft .
“jCorporatron (Greenkraﬁ) : further assrgned some loan re 1vables to Roxburgh R
Investments errted (Roxburgh) i T G

- "‘{"‘-.Aﬁer the s1gnment and sale of loans from the lendmg banks to third partres drscussrons I
‘were made with néw creditors/lenders to restructure the outstandmg loans covered by the °
* Omnibus Agréement which the Companly has defaulted ‘in 2006.:On October 15, 2010, -
- the Company :and: the “current credrtors/lenders signed . the Amended ‘and ‘Restated
Omnrbus Agreement (Amended Agreement) The restruetunng of ‘the loan: finally -

‘ i f th

- )restructuredfor25 years, . , i R
.= Conditional waiver of penalty and other charges upon the falthful performance by the- e
. Company of the terms of restructuring. : - o
. “The outstanding’ prmclpal and accrued mteres : xpense as: of September 30 2010_':. ,}
- 'shall be reduced via dacion en ‘pago or sale of the followmg properties: (a) all of the : -
S outstandmg common and preferred shares”of stock in ‘Steniel ‘Land Corporation - *
(SLC), (b) identified idle assets of - STN and its subsrdlanes, and (c) by way of :
+ conversion into equity though the i issuance of the Company s unissued capital stock. "
g;.'I'he outstandmg prmcrpal amount after the ‘dacion’ en pago or sale of propertles shall Lo
be paid in 92 consecutive quarterly installments’ startmg in January 2013, i
= The outstandmg portlon of the accrued mterest after equity conversion shall be pard S
T in-40° consecuttve_quarterly mstallments startlng aﬁer year 15 from the date of
_‘i.;!.restructurmg : _ : , SR
,'_ji_Restructured outstan mg prmcrpal_wrll-be sub_pect i terest of 6% per annum forf. .
15 years and 8% per annum on the 16" year onwards. """ gk
= The restructured accrued interest expense pnor to loan restructurmg wrll be subject to PR
' _.mterestofs%perannum S . : R
‘. The restructured “loan shall be
S Collateral Trust Agreement.

- All other’ costs and: expenses of restructurmg mc dmg documentatron costs legal |
- fees and out-of-pocket expenses shalI be for the account of the Company, and

_".v';A S-year ] Busmess "Plan for Stemel ledanao Packagmg Corporatron (SMPC),.. B
S operatmg subsldlary mcludmg the executlon of raw material supply contracts.” . = ]
A merger, reorganrzatlon or dlssolutron_of certamv,subsrdranes_ in lme wrth the L

| h."f’_:No dtvrdend dec]aratron or. paymentsluntrl
'~'3pald R "
.- No

e restructured obhgatrons are fully |

new borrowmg, unless w1th consent of the lenders




tlon (other than operatlonal:‘

*“No repayment or p yment of any “debt or obli
- ,_fexpenses), ‘unless with consent of the‘lenders oy
g 'Credrtor:

nants representatlons and warrantres

“pago ‘of  the Groups 1dle machmerles 'spare parts- an

L 5fconvers10n through the i 1ssuance of the Company s share capltal have beea completed as’
" at December 31, 2010. The ‘dacion en pago transaction reduced the outstanding loan

R prmcrpal ‘amount by P122 mrlhon wh11e the “equity- conversmn reduced outstandmg
R accrued mterest by P248 mrlllon ' T i : LA

. The daclon'en pago relatmg to the Group s .‘shares in SLC and TPC’s land and burldmg S
7. has a total value of P290.0 million. In'2012, certain certificates authorizing registration -
' were 1ssued and reduced ‘the ‘total value. ﬁ'om P290.0 million to P289.88 million. The -
- remaining assrgnment of shares is still for ﬁnahzatron with buyers to meet the regulatory' N
. requirements . on - u'ansfer‘ of ‘assets' as at reportmg date and thls is ‘expected 1o be . -

Interest aymen! : e :
- .-On -December 2, 2011, the ‘current credrtors/lenders agreed to waive the payment of
- interest: for the ﬁrst two Q). years of the loan commencmg on the restructuring date, to .

: correspond to the prmcrpal repayment as stated in"the’ Amended Agreement.- Hence,

“period.In relation to this, on March 1,2012, the accrited interest which was capitalized -
- iiaspart of the loan’ prmcrpal in'2010in accordance with the Amended Agreement, was
e also co' 'doned by 1ts ma_]or creditors eﬁ'ecuve December 31 2011 (Note la)

operating as a gomg concern depends on the fulﬁllment ‘of the restructurmg plan and its -
+ , ability to generate ‘sufficient cash flows to meet its obligations and terms and conditions ~

operatlons, and. ultrmately to attam prot' tablhty Durmg the year, the improvement in

_' ; Q__"lmpact on the Group s future operations except those that have already bezn disclosed in
-+ the foregomg "I‘here are no o her sources of reve
natur

2 Basrs of Preparatro

i [ Qtatement of Complranc

. Financial Reportmg Standards (PFRS). PF‘KS are based.on International Financial -

Interpretauons 1ssued by the I’mancral Repertmg Standards Councll (FRSC)

si.consent - for ehange m' _matenall ownershlp m the Group and- o ow

__’:"mterest payments shall be made in accordanoe w1th the . Amended Agreement but shall = -
" commence ‘on the 27% month after the restructurmg date, inclusive of a two (2) year grace -

Wrth all the above atters management beheves that the Company s ablhty o contmue,j 5

of the restructuring -plan, ‘which " will contribute to the positive improvement of the - S

~“'market ‘price of 'paper and continuing efforts: of ‘management which have been = :
e lmplemented to control costs throughout the plant contributed to reduced losses against * -

‘+ prior : years desplte -the - restrictions  from |1mportatrons affecting the banana export . = . .-

. industry.: There'are" 10 known’ trends, events or -uncertainties that will have a material . " -

or m ome that are not ordmary in '

. The consolidated financial statcments have bcen prepared m comphance wrth Ph]lrppme .‘ o t o

'::Reportmg Standards (IFRS)"issued .by the ‘Triternational : Accountmg Standards. Board;l'__: vj-'; "
“'(IASB).:PFRS consrsts of PFRS, Phrlrppme Accounting Standards (PAS) and Ph]hppme S



* The consohdated ﬁnanclal statements as at and for the year ended December 31 2013 SR
- Vwere approved and authonzed for 1ssuance by the Board of D1rectors on ApnI 9, 2014 Y

" The. consolidated fmanclal statements of .the,,Group have ‘been 'prepared on a hrstoncal
- " cost basis of  accounting, except for the avarlable-for-sale ﬁnancral assets whrch are -
S measuredatfalrvalue g N EEAA S : :

B .Functlonal and Presentatlon Currency L RPN
" The: consolidated financial - statements .are’ ].esented 1n Phrhppme peso wh1ch is. the :
- Group’s ﬁmctlonal eurrency All financial mformatron are rounded off to the nearest_ e

L thousand peso, except when otherwrse mdrcated _

_'.ja_Basrs of Consohdatxon _ L
L1t The accompanymg consohdated ﬁnancral
e _“--:Company and ltS subsrdrarres S

flstater‘nen_ts ' include the _,a'cco‘unts. ‘of ‘the |

U ‘A subsrdrary is an’ entlty controlled by the Company The Company controls an entrty 1f TR

.7 and only if; the Company is.exposed to,|or has right to, variable returns from its =~ "
“involvement w1th the entity and has the abrhty to affect ‘those returns through its power -

~over the entlty The Company reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and -

R The consolrdated ﬁnancral statements are prepared for the same reportmg penod as the SR
“Company, usmg umform accounting’ pohcres for like transactions and other events in = .
~--similar 'circumstances. . Intergroup balances and transactlons, including - mtergroupi,ffé
- [, unrealized profits: and losses are ehmmated ‘m preparmg the consohdated ﬁnanc1a1 "
o statements S : T

3 Summary of Sr mﬁcant Accountmg Pollcres

_ f 'I'he accountmg pohcres set'.out below have ~been apphed consrstently to aIl years .
" presented in the consolidated ﬁnancral statements except for the changes in accountmg .
polrclesasexplamed below- S T \ , >

e .."'Adontron of New and Revrsed Standards. _endments to Standards and Internretatrons R
"% The Group has’ adopted the- following ‘new. and revised’standards, .amendments to -
" standards and " interpretations - starting January 1, 2013 and “accordingly, changed its
- accounting policies. Except as otherwise indicated, the adoption of these new and revised
. standards, amendments to standards and mterpretatlons drd not have any sxgmficant. R

sk unpact on the G up’_s cons 'I'dated financial tatements

e . Presentatton of Items of Other Comprehenszve Income (Amendments to PAS 1 ) The o
' amendments RETE S : o

e requrre thatan entlty present separately the items of other comprehensrve income’ "
-+ 'that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are ;i e
R met from those that would never be reclassrﬁed toprofitor loss; R
“‘'e ‘do"not change the existing. optlon to present proﬁt or loss and other' ‘
o comprehenswe income in two statements; and . o
- ' changed the title of the statement of eomprehensrve income to the statement of
. profit: or. loss ‘and . other comprehensrve mcome' However .an entrty 1s strll ST
o "fallowedto useothertltles o p LT T T




if’ - Dzsclosures Offsetting- Fmanczal Assets and Financial. Llab 'Iities (Amendments to ,
L PFRS 7) These amendments mclude mmtmum dxsclosure requxrements related to -

;or.. T EA
subject t0 enforceable master nettmg arrangements or 51m11ar agreements .

o vThey mclude a tabular reconclltatlon of gross and net amounts of ﬁnanclal assets and
* financial hablhtles, separately showmg amounts ‘offset and not offset in the statement -
-of fmanclal pos1tlon o i S ; e

'"'-PFRS_IO Con Itdatea' Fmanczal Statenfe e

) PFRS : 10 mtroduces .a new approach to determmmg whlch mvestees should be .
consolidated and provxdes a smgle model to be apphed m the control ana]ysrs for all‘_
' mvestees ' SR A SR :

‘ An investor controls an mvestee when':

1t is exposed or. has’ nghts to vanable returns‘ from its. mvolvement mth that

r PFRS 12 Dzsclosure of Interests in Other Entmes :

_'PFRS 12 contam_s the "dtsclosure requlrements for'entltles that have mterests in. o
t arrangements : (ie. Jomt operattons or joint ventures), associates
- and/or’ unconsohdated structured entltnes, almmg to prov1de mformatlon to enable
** users to evaluate: e -

the nature of and risks associated with, an entity’s interests in other entmes and "
the effects “of . those: mterests ; on'the ; entlty s ﬁnanctal posxtxon ﬁnanelal s
rforn and cash ﬂows AR : SRR

" PAS 28' Inve tments m Assoclates and Jomt Ventures (201 1)

: _";PAS 28 (201 1) supersedes PAS 28 (2008),' Tnvestments in Assoczates PAS 28 (2011),3 g
makes the followmg amendmentS'

PFRS 5 Non-current Assets HeId for SaIe and Dtscontmued Operatzans apphes LT
to an mvestment, or a portion of an mvestment, in an assocxate ora Jomt venture SN
‘that meets the criteria to be cla351fied as held for sale and S .
“Yon’ cessatlon of 31gn1ﬁcant influence or joint control,’ ‘even 1f an mvestment inan
associate becomes an investment in a jomt venture or.vice versa, the entlty does i
not remeasure the retamed mterest oo :




Value Medsuremént .

PFRS 13 replaces the faxr value measurement . guidance contamed in: mdmdual_ .
PFRSs with a single source of fair value' 'measurement guidance. It defines fair value,
';establxshes a framework for measuring fau‘ value and sets out disclosure requtrements‘ P
for fair value measurements It explams how to measure falr value when it is required
‘or permxtted by other PFRS. It does. not introduce new ‘requirements to measure -
assets or hablhtles at falr value, nor does it ehmmate the practlcablllty exceptlons to
‘falr value mea: urements that currently exrst in certam standards .

- .__._actuana gams and’ losses Ve;recogmzed nnmedlately in other comprehensxve
fmeome thls change removes the corrldor method and ehmmates the: ablhty for

Th AGroup has applred the relevanttransn onal prov1sxons of the amended standard FEUIT

. on a ;retrospectwe bas1s and provided more extensive dlsclosures The nature and

B accountmg pohcy with- respect to the ehmmatron of the “corridor method” under_"%if

o whlch the recogmtron of actuanal gams and losses could be deferred Instead, all

The followmg table summarizes’ the 1mpacts of the above changes on the Group s_ i
 financial position and comprehenswe mcome : . : o

L Januaryl 2012

" Financlal Position
: Reurement benef ts:

1045 ‘ ';;:(92,244)

’ Reservet‘onetu'ement s A Ty : . T
: bcneﬁtllablltty Sl eniirel T . f' -1 S .-2,436 o0 2436 -
_ Deficit 1 A : Ce o (1,5932335) -

Reported - Restatement i AsRestated . Reported Restatement AsRestated"?v'_ C

75, 143 (P3481) U paeez




!

!
: -:-Vnecembersl 2012”'-‘ e Jahuh&'i'iblz' - :
..AsPrewously L AsPrewously : :
Reported Restatement ! AsRestated choned Restatement As Restated

T Consohdated

ST e s e D qomy o om) -
©,00108 (oooo7)| 700101 .7 (002880) Seoe - (0.02880) "~

'_’.L

R Increase
L (Decrease)

L Consolldated Statements of Fmanclal
.7 Other noncurrent assets |-~
- 'Retirement benefits hablhty
- “Reserve for retlrement beneﬁts llablhty

”fDeﬁclt o Yilo

Position -

“P8os

o (1,594)
1,881
(1,093

- Increase ' -
__(Decrease) - -

. E . Consolidated Statements of Comprehensnve Incomev

S Operatmg cxpenses G SESN '
. . Income tax @eme :
g ..-:Increase in net mcome

20

o ‘Remeasurements of retuement benef ts hablllty
+ Income tax on 1tems that w111 never be reclas51ﬁed to

“profitor loss o { ule b (81) _
" Increase i OCI -_netof tax ! L 189
L ov&an ini';;aé’t’bn 'total 'z':‘orﬁpfeheﬁsiv'e‘ihconié -;»_* : P03
o The Group has ’derecogmzed the retlrement benef ts habxllty for 2013 aﬁer the .
- ‘-[submdlary carrymg the retlrement benefits llablhty was so]dm2013 SR V,: o :--;

_ "Annual Impro ments. o PFRS 2009 2011 Cycle vanous standards contam :
" amendments to five standards with consequent1a1 amendments to other standards and - -

L mterpretatlons ‘The: followmg are the said. 1mprovements or amendments to PFRS - "
. which are applicable and relévant to the Group, none of whlch has a s1gmﬁcant eﬁ'ect e
'. on the consohdated fmanc1a1 statements of the Group RPN = .

PAS 1, Presentatzon of }" znanczal Statemen s Comparattve Informatzan beyond S
~ Minimum Requ:rements ‘This is amended to clanfy that only :one comparative .
~ period - which is the preceding penod - is required for a complete set of financial -~ - -
statements. If an entity presents- addltlonal comparatlve mformatlon, then that -
additional mformatlon need not be in the form of a complete set of consolidated .+ "
. '.;_"fmanclal ‘statements. However,’ such mformatlon should be accompamed by SR
related notes and should be in accorddnce thh PFRS SRR _ S




o -",For example, 1f an entlty elects to present a thn'd consohdated statement of _‘ RS
.+ "comprehensive income, then this add1t10nal statement should be accompamed by .
11 related notes, and all such additional’ mformatmn should be in’ accordance
vith PFRS However, the entlty need not present : o, T

:'_o | -other ] pnmary .statements for that-addrtlonal comparatrve penod, such as af“
- third statementof cash ﬂows, ori S T

ot the openmg statement of fmancxal posmon is requlred only 1f
‘a change in accountmg pohcy‘ SR : ;
trospectlve restatement; o1 SR 7
a reclasmﬁcatlon has a’ matenal' effect upon ?'the mformatxon m tha
: cdnsohdated statement of ﬁnancxal position; - . g
o - xcept for the disclosures requlred under PAS 8, notes related to the openlng ;-

<‘statement of ﬁnanclal posrtlon are no‘longer requrred and - -7
‘th approprlate date:for the- opemng statement . of fmancral posrtron is: the
eginning’ of the: precedmg penod rather than‘the beginning of the earliest
‘comparative penod presented. | Th1s is ‘regardless ‘of whether an- entity -
provides - additional comparatrve mformatlon' beyond the mmlmum':‘}
' _paratlve inf rmatron requrrements Soen e e

o ards and mterpretatnons are_ :

B ;.:g.feffectlve for annual periods. beginning aftér January 1, 2013 and have not been appliedin = -
. preparing | these consolidated financial statements. Except as otherwise indicated, none of L
" ’,'these is expected to have a s1gmﬁcant effect on the consohdated ﬁnanclal statements.

o 'o enforceable both in the normal course of busrness and in the event of default,-: | o
msolvency or bankruptcy of the entxty and all counterpames and L




Recoverable Amount Drsc]osures for Non—ﬁnancral Assets (Amendments fo PAS 36,. - -
' 7 Impatrment of Assets) ‘These narrow-scope amendments to' PAS 36 address the .
- disclosure of mformatxon about the recoverable amount ‘of impaired assets if that
N ’_'--amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. .The amendments clarified that

. the scope of those disclosures is limited to the recoverable amount of 1mpa1red assets
o ed on farr value less costs of dxsposal : R y

o “The amendments are to be apphed retrospectlvely for annuaI perlods begmnmg on or .
o aﬁer Januaxy 1“‘2014 Earlrer apphcatlo 1s permltted , - '

L. Phlhppme Interpretatlon IFRIC 21 Levzes -:Thls mterpretatlon prov1des guldance on jg $
© . accounting for levies in accordance wrth the requirements of PAS 37, Provisions,” =
' Contingent. Ltabzlmes and: Contzngent Assets, The interpretation confirms that an =~
. entity recogmzes a 11ab1hty for a levy when, and only. when, the triggering event' - ..
- specified in, the leglslatlon occurs.' An 'entxty does not recognize ‘a liability at an = -
= . earlier date'even if it has no realistic opportumty to avoid the tnggenng event. Other -
- jstandards should ‘be ‘applied to determine’ whether, the debit side is an asset or
. expense, Outﬂows within the scope of PAS 12, Income Taxes, fines and penalties,
- and llablhtles arising from emlssmn tradmg schemes are exphcltly excluded from the

.  "PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2009)
L '__.PFRS 9 Fmanczal]nstmments (2013)

PFRS 9, Fiz:d_"??’ai Instruments :'(201"6) and. e

S PFRS 9 (2009) mtroduces new requlrements for the c1ass1ﬁcatlon and measurement Do
x of financial assets. Under PFRS 9 (2009), financial assets are classified and measured - "
.. - based on the business model in which they are held 'and the characteristics of their -~ ' .
. contractual cash ﬂows PFRS 9 (2010) mtroduces additions relatmg to ﬁnanclal e
liabilities. : -

A substantlal overhaul of hedge adcountmg that wnll al]ow entltles to better _
-reflect thelr risk management actmtres in the ﬁnancral statements; Changes to
“address the so-called ‘own credit’: 1ssue ‘that 'were already mcluded in'PFRS 9, . i
;'ananczal Instruments to be apphed lin isolation wrthout the need to change any IR
other aecountmg for financial instruments; and -

“Removes: the January 1 2015 mandatory effectlve date of PFRS 9 to provrde R
ufﬁcrent tune for preparers of the “fin; ¢ ents to make the transmon to SRV
'--_the new requrrements o : DR

o {The IASB is currently drscussmg some. 1m1ted amendments to the classrﬁcatron and
. _r?;'-measurement requirements in IFRS 9 and i is also dlscussmg the expected credit loss =~ -
*impairment model ‘to be included in IFRS 9. Once those deliberations are complete . =~
- .the IASB expects to publish a final versmn ‘of IFRS 9 that will ‘include all of the = - Vo
, .'phases Classification and Measurement, Impairment -and Hedge Accountmg That S

ersion of IFRS 9 will mclude anew mandatory eﬂ'ectlve date : . :




. S Do L
J

‘ Fmanmal Assets and Financial Llabllltles ' B o
Date of Recognition.: The Group recogmzes a ﬁnanclal asset ora fmancnal llablhty in the S

o consolidated statement of financial position! 'when it becomes a party to the contractual ¢

o assets, reeogmtlon lS done usmg settlement date accountmg

B ‘f"Imtza

provisions of the instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of f'manexal‘_- L

ecogmtton of Fmanczal Instruments Fmanclal mstruments are recogmzed =

I mmally at fair value of the consideration glven (in case of an asset) or received (in case =

-of a" habxhty) ‘The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those - |

B des1gnated as at falr value through prof t or loss (FVPL), mcludes transactlon costs

o habllltles at FVPL or other financial - habllltles “The classification | depends on the
- -purpose for. which the investments are acqurred ‘and whether they are quoted in an active
-7 market.’ Management determines the class1ﬁcat10n of its financial ‘assets and financial

.. Tliabilities at initial recogmtlon and,’ where a owed and appropnate re-evaluates such

SO desrgnatlon at everyreportmg date PRI ST PR

B 'the hierarchy b

o the level of the falr value hlerarchy, as explamed as follows

- -"-observable or when the instrument. is derecogmzed ‘For each transaction, the Group
SR determmes the approprlate method of recogmzmg the ‘Day 1’ profit amount

"The Group classrﬁes 1ts ﬁnanclal assets m the followmg eategones held—to-matuntyj
'(HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, financial assets at FVPL
" and loans-and receivables. The Group classifies its financial liabilities as either financial

a Determmatton of Fazr Value The fa1r value for financial mstruments traded in actlve Lo
_ - markets at the reportmg date is based on thelr quoted market pnce w1thout any deductlon ‘
: ‘for t:ransactlon costs B e : _ , '

: For all other f'mancral mstruments not hsted in an actlve market, the fa1r value is
determined by using approprxate valuatlon techmques Valuation techniques'include the -
drscounted cash flow method, companson to similar instruments for which market

~ observable prices exist, options pricing models and other relevant valuation models.

' 'For assets and llabllltles that are recognized i in the consolidated financial statements on a -
" recurring | basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in -
-assessmg the cate g tio at the end of each reportmg penod '

o __”For purposes of the fair value dxsclosure the Group has determmed classes of assets and B L
“liabilities on the basis of the’ nature, characterlstlcs and risks of the asset or habxhty and'

| '_' Levell quoted prices (unadjusted) m actlve markets for 1dent1cal assets or '_

. Y llablhtles, o : l L _
- Leve12 mputs other than quoted prlces mcluded w1thm Level 1 that are observable : .
EREIE for the asset or hab1hty, elther dlrectly or mdlrectly, and - R

' -Level3 : mputs for the asset or hablllty_that are not based on observable market o

e ‘Day 1 _',‘Proﬁt Where the transactlon price in a non-actlve market is drfferent from the S
~ fair value of other observable current market transaetlons in the same mstrument or based -
“on a valuation techmque whose variables mclude only data from observable market, the
_.,Group ‘recognizes ‘the difference between| the transaction price ‘and the" fair value
“(a ‘Day 1” profit) in profit or loss unless it quahﬁes for recognition as some other type of
. asset. ‘In cases where data used is not observable, the difference between the transaction
~ price .and ‘model value is only recogmzed in profit or loss when the inputs become




B _»ﬁ._,:'{_:Laans andReceivables. : Loans and recelvables are. non-derlvatlve financlal assets thh
 fixed or determmable payments and matuntres ‘that are not quoted in ‘an ‘active market.

" earned on loans and receivables shall be recogmzed as part of “Interest income” account
PR 1§ the consohdated statement of comprehenswe income on an accrual basis. Amortized

. that are mtegral part ‘of ‘the effective interest rate. ~The periodic amortization is also

S ‘recervables
L The Group s cashand recewables are mcluded under tlns category (Notes 5 and 6)

| AFS Ftnanczal ,Assets 31AFS ﬁnane1al assets are non-derlvatlve fmancral assets that aren‘ '-

* . value and changes therein, other than nnpalrment losses and forelgn currency differences =
" lon AFS -debt’ mstruments ‘are rccogmzed m[other comprehensxve income ‘and presented : -

7 in the “Unrealrzed gain’ on avarlable-for—sale financial assets” in equity. Dividends .
"’ earned on holdmg 'AFS ‘equity securities are! recogmzed as ¥Dividend income” when the

as at December 31,2013 2nd 2012.

- ’Non-derlvatlve Fmanclal Assets

v g ‘They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not _
" desrgnated as AFS ﬁnanclal assets or fmancxal assets as at FVPL L SN

¥ Subsequent m1t1al m asurement, loans'an recelvables are carned at amortrzed cost RN
- using the effective interest rate method, less any unpalrment in value. - Any interest . = -

cost is calculated by takmg into account any | drscount or premlum on acqulsmon ‘and fees

_included as.'part;.of “Interest income” account in ‘the" consolidated statement of - i~ .
' comprehensrve__mcome Gams or losses are recogmzed in proﬁt or loss when loans andv o
’derecogmzed or nnpalred : B

- either desxgnated in this category. or not classrfied in any of the other financial asset - i
categories. - Subsequent to initial recogmtron, AFS financial assets are measured at fair .~ -

- . right to receive. payment has been estabhshed -When individual AFS financial assets are. -
- either derecogmzed or; 1mpa1red ‘the related ‘accumulated unreahzed gains . or losses
o prevrously reported in eqmty are transferred to and recogmzed in proﬁt or loss -

_';'AFS f'mancxal assets also mclude unquoted equlty mstruments w1th falr values whlch N
R cannot be relxably ’determmed These mstruments are carried at cost Iess lmpalrment m o

L Cash on ‘hand and dep031ts held at call wrth ‘banks are. carned m the consolxdated L
N statement of ﬁnanc1a1 pos1tlon at face amount or at nommal amount . SO ) S

'Recexvables e A FRE L : S
- Receivables ansmg from regular sales w1th"average credlt term of 30 to 60 days are .
“initially recogmzed at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost usmg the
-effective interest method, less provision for 1mpa1rment Falr value approxlmates invoice

amount due to short-term nature of the ﬁnancral assets :




L 'A Pl'OVISIOIl fori unpaument of recervables rs estabhshed when there is objectrve evrdence E

T that the Group w1ll not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms -

* of the teceivables."- Significant financial d1fficult1es of the debtor, probability -that the
¥ .debtor wrll _enter bankruptcy or financial reorgamzatron, ‘and default or. delrnquency in.:

. of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present

o value of: estrmated ﬁJture cash flows, dlscounted at the effective “interest rate. . The" e

. carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the .-
'~ amount of the loss is recogmzed in the statement of total comprehensive income within' "
- operating expense. When a receivable remains uncollectible after the Group has exerted‘-

F all legal remedles, rt is wntten-off agamst the allowance account for reeelvables. L

S includ

! Other.Financial Ltdhrlztzes | Thrs categoryI pertams :to,pfinanclal llabrhtles that are not

' transaction costs that are consrdered an. mtegral part. of the effectrve mterest rate of the N

‘_‘ -The Group S u'ade pay_ables and other current habrlrtles and long-term borrowmgs are' , B

..‘,‘:.Derecoggrt £ R
' Financial Assets. | A financial asset (or,: Where apphcable a part of a fmanclal asset or o

o .- - part of a group of srm1lar ﬁnancral assets) is pnmanly dereeogmzed when

.y l :
o " ':'the nghts to receive cash ﬂows from the asset have explred or ‘

k"fthe ‘Group ' has ‘transferred ;ilts nghts to ‘receive cash}’ﬂows from'the asset or has

o payments are considered -indicators that the trade receivables are impaired. The amount . -

L desrgnated or classrﬁed as at FVPL. After initial measurement, other financial liabilities - .
" .. -are carried at amortrzed cost using the eﬁ'ectxve interest rate method. Amortized costis = .- ;
: calculated:by takmg mto account any premrum or d1scount and any. directly attributable -

'*assumed an oblrgatlon to pay them‘in ﬁrll ‘without material delay to-a third party =
- “under-a “pass-through” arrangement; and either: (a) has transferred substantially all |
. «.-the ‘risks "and rewards of the asset_ or (b).1 has nerther transferred nor retained -

o When the Group has transferred its nghts 'to receive cash ﬂows from an’ asset or has o

- - entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained -~ . |

“ ", the -risks -and - rewards . of - ‘ownership.’ When it has neither transferred nor retained . . .}

.:_ substantrally all the rrsks and rewards of the ‘asset nor. transfen'ed control of the asset, the .. . ="

.~ Group continues to recogmze the transferred asset to the extent of the Group ] contmumg SRR
- involvement. In that case, the Group- also recognizes - the ‘ associated liability.~ The |
o »h'ansferredfasset and the associated’ hablhty are measured on the basrs that reﬂeets the -

1gatlons th t the Group has retamed

e "Fmancxal Liabilities. A financ1al lxabrhty is derecogmzed when the oblrgatron under the. S

liability is - drscharged or.cancelled or explres ‘When an existing financial liability is

L replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of

. treated” asa derecognrtron of the orrgmal habllrty and the recogmtlon of a new hablhty

- an: exrstmg Tiability are:substantially modlﬁed such an exchange or modification is




T Oﬁ’settmg F1nanc1al Instruments SIS : =

" -Financial assets and financial hab111t1es are. offset and the net amount is reported in the o
: _consohdated statément of financial- posntlon if and only if, ‘there is a currently -
S enforceable legal nght to offset the recogmzed amounts and there is an intention to settle -
", .on a net basis, or. to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. “This is not -

are presented gross in the consohdated statement of financial posxtlon

.t~Impa1rment omeancralAssets A e A
.~ The Group' assesses, -at the reporting date,,whether there 1s obJectrve ev1dence that a
o ﬁnancxal asset or group of ﬁnancxal assets 1s unpalred I A SRR

.. A fmanclal asset or a group of fmanc1a1 assets is dee' ed to be nnparred if, and only 1f o
- there is obJectlve evidence: of impairment " as a result of oné or more events that have . -
" occurred after the initial recognition of the jasset (an incurred loss event) and that Toss

e of ﬁnancla assets that can be rehably estlmated

Forr finan 1 assets carnedat ':amortlze 'cost such as a;ns and recelvables, the Group'f;

o generally the case with master netting agreements and the related assets and llabilltles o

event has an impact on the estimated future cash ﬂows of the financxal asset or the group s

- first assesses whether lmpalrment ex1sts lmd1v1dua11y for ‘financial assets. that are . L

0 md1v1dually s1gmﬁcant, ‘or collectlvely for fmanclal assets that are not individually

L significant. - If no objechve evidence of 1mpa1rment has been identified for a particular
- financial asset that was mdlvrdually assessed the Group includes the asset as part of a .

G the group “for 1mpa1rment Assets that ‘are mdlvxdually assessed’ for impairment and for .
. which an xmpalrment loss :is, or conunues to be recogmzed are not mcluded in the Ce
o collectlve 1mpa1rment assessment — i S : : . ,

“ the borrower or a group-of borrowers ‘is . experlencmg “financial 'difficulty, default or - .

7+ of financial Teorganization intended to alleviate the financial condition of the borrower.
*".. For collective impairment purposes, ev1dence of impairment may include observable data

measurable decrease in the estlmated future éash ﬂows of the.related assets

:'_If there is: obJectlve ev1dence of 1mpa1rment, the 'amount of loss. is measured as the 3
-7 difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated fature .

. Time value i is generally not considered: when the effect of discounting the cash flows is
-~ "not material. . If a-loan or receivable. has a vanable rate, the discount rate for measuring

L. any 1mpa1rment loss is the current’ eﬁ‘ectlve linterest rate, adjusted for the original credit
risk premijum. . “For collective unpaxrment purposes, unpaument loss is computed based

o ,_ gon thelr spectlve default and hlstoncal loss[expene ce.” : A
' The carxymg amount of the asset shall be reduced erther dtrectly or through the use ofan
- allowance account. The jmpairment loss for the penod shall be recognized in profit or

. loss. If,in a subsequent period, the amount of the: 1mparrment loss ‘decreases and the

o reversal. of ‘an impairment loss is: recognized in prof' it -ar loss; to- the extent that the
carrymg amount of the asset does not exceed 1ts amortlzed cost at the reversal date

© group, of fmancnal assets with similar credlt risk characteristics and collectlvely assesses .- - |

o wadence of ‘1mpa1rment'for spec:1fic 1mpaument purposes may mclude mdlcatlons that e

delmquency in prmcxpal or interest payments or may enter into bankrllptcy or other form RGN

Coon emstmg economic conditions or. mdustry-wrde developments mdrcatmg that there 1s a-'_ o E

. cash flows(excluding future credit losses),discounted-at the financial asset’s original .~
" effective’ interest rate (i.e.,” the effective’ mterest rate computed ‘at - mxtlal reccgmtron)

;- "decrease .can be related: objectively to’an ievent’ occumng after the ‘impairment ‘was R
recogmzed, the- prevrously recogmzed unpatrment Joss -is reversed. ‘Any subsequent . ¥




... Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net reahzable value Cost is determmed en

" overheads . ('based on normal’ operating capacrty) ‘Materials and supplxes in-transit are’ - -

- physical- condition as indicators. The amount of- wntten-down inventories 'to met © - . .
- realizable value and all losses of mventones are recogmzed as an expense in the period -

Prope;ty and @urpment S R ? AR L

“ . - Property and equipment are recorded at hrstorlcal cost less accumu]ated depreclatlon,’
S _amortrzatron and 1mpa1rment losses. The: m1t1al cost of property and equlpment consists .
oo of its purchase price, including import duties and nonreﬁmdable purchase taxes and any -
-+ directly attnbutable costs of brmglng the asset o its workm !

SO Subsequent costs are mcluded in the asset’s carfymg amount or recogmzed as a separate‘ :
. -asset, as. appropnate, only ‘when it is probable ‘that future ‘economic beneﬁts associated -

B .Irves of the 1mprovements whlchever is shorter

- periodically, and adjusted if appropnate at each reporting date to ensure that the method .

- economic benefi ts from items of property and eqmpment An asset’s carrylng amountis~ ¢

the basrs of wcrghted average method. The|cost of ﬁmshed ‘goods and work i in process .
* comprise raw materials, direct labor and jother direct ‘costs. ‘and related productmn'ff

i 'stated at invoice cost plus importation and other mcrdental charges Net reahzable value".- S :
N for matenals and supphes is the current replacement cost : el e

L Inventones arc derecogmzed elther when sold or wrltten-oﬂ' Prov1sron for mventmy__-;,-_ Sl
-losses is . set up, when necessary, based 0n ‘a review of the movement .and current .-
~ condition of each mventory item. Provrsron for inventory losses . is provrded, where o
~ . necessary, for obsolete, slow-moving and defectrve inventories prmcrpally usingageaad .. ...

- the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of ..~
o mventorres, arising from an increase in net reahzable value is recogmzed as areduction’. .-
. .in the amount ifi mventones recogmzed as an expense in the penod in whlch the reversalﬁ -

g condltlon and locatlon fnrk_ 0

L ‘with the item will) ﬂow to the. Group and ¢ the cost of the. 1tem can be measured reliably.

L ’.'Deprecratlon and 'amortrzatlon, whlch commences when the assets are ava11able for ns‘- _‘ L
~ .. intended use, are calculated usmg the strarght—hne method over 1ts estrmated useful hfe as L
U follows : : : S

s — : : 'Number onears

L Machlnery and equipment _ w210
L 5 Transportatlon and office equlpment ROk I SRS S
' -_,’Fumrture ﬁxtures and equrpment T :,-'3'-'5.,-"% S

' Leasehold and land lmprovements are amortrzed over the lease term or estunated useful R

: 'The asset’s res1dual values estlmated useful llves and deprecratlon method are revrewed e
~and penod of deprecratron and amortrzatron are consistent with the expected pattern of U

written down 1mmed1ately to its recoverable amount 1f the asset’s carrymg amount :s§ PEEE
}._.,_vgreater than the estunated recoverable amount R I N e P,




» 7 Assets'are’ classified assets held-for-sale and stated at the lower of can'ymg am°unt?;-"l :
* . and fair value less co

.. one year, the entity :
. the present value of the cots to sell that arises from the passage of time shall be presented B

~ - to fair value less costs to sell. The Group recogmzes a gain for any subsequent increasein . :

- - when it is permanently withdrawn from use and fio future economic benefits are expected -1

~."¢ rate that reflects ‘current; market “assessments of the time value of money and the tisks -

~.inflows, ‘the recovera arnount is determmed for the cash-generatmg unit to which the
asset belongs : Impalrment losses are. reeogmzed in; proﬁt or-loss 'in_those” expense

The carrymg ‘amount of an item of 'property and equlpment is derecogmzed on drsposal e
~or when no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal at whlch t1me the cost_' .
- and related accumulated deprecratron are removed from the accounts SR :

- -Gams and losses on‘: dlsposals are. determmed by companng the proceeds wrth the S :;
: carrymg amount ‘and‘are’ mcluded in other 'operatmg mcome/expenses account m the, AL

’ Assets Held-for-Sale

s to sell if their carrying amount is recovered primarily-through'a -
sale. transaction: rathe than' contrnumg use.’ When the sale is: expected to occur beyond
11 measure the costs to ‘sell at thelr present value: Any increase in

as part of the operatmg expenses in the consolrdated statement of comprehensrve income. v

An nnpauments loss is’ recogmzed for any 1mt1al or subsequent wnte-down of the asset: RS

s fair value less costs o sell of an  asset, not m excess of the cumulatlve 1mpa1rment loss e
- _'thathas beenrecogmzed ‘ IR TR R i e

Once class1ﬁed as;he]d-for-sale property, plant and equrpm»nt are no longer amortrzed A
or depreclated and any equrty-accounted mvestee 1s no longer equrty accounted .

o When changes to .the plan of sale are made the Group ceases to class1fy the asset as held- o
- for-sale, the Group remeasures the asset the lower of its carrying amount before the asset .
. 'was classified as held-for-sale adJusted for any deprecratron, amortization or revaluation: - S
- that would have been recognized had the asset not been classified as held-for-sale, and jts .~ -7
- recoverable’ amount at the date of the- subsequent decision not fo sell,:"Gain or-loss- = .
L frecognrzed on ‘me urement of a non-current asset classified as ‘held-for-sale is presented . i -
. under. the operating i come ‘(expense) in- the consohdated statement of comprehensive

S An ltem f asset held-for-sale ‘is derecognlzed when’ elther it f_has been ?‘drsposed'of or.

 from its .use or, dlsposal Any gain or loss : ansmg on the retirement and disposal of an - .- -
item of asset held-for-sale (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds .
- ~and the carrying: amount of -the asset) is mcluded m proﬁt or loss m the perlod of o
' retnrementordrsmsal S B P T

'Imparrment of Non-finaneial Assets B AR - o e
The .carrying amounts of _property and equlpment are revrewed for unparrment when
-events or - changes in" circumstances mdlcate that the can'ymg amount ‘may not be
~ recoverable. “If | any such md:catlon ex1sts and if the carrying amount exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written down to
- their recoverable amounts.” The recoverable amount of the ‘asset is the greater of fair -
 value less costs. to sell-and value i in use. ‘The fair value less costs to sell is the amount ~ .+~
obtainable - from * ithe sale of an - asset m an arm ’s " length - transactlon between'_ C
- “knowledgeable; w1llmg parties, less costs of disposal. . In- assessing: value in use, the ..~
s estrmated future cash flows are ‘discounted to their present value. using a pre-tax dlscount S

f"fspeclfic to ‘asset .that’ does not generate . largely mdependent cash’




o systematrc basis over. its

An assessment is made at each reportmg date as to whether there is any mdrcatron that

~ previously recogmzed impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If

such indication exists, .the- recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized -
* impairment loss is. reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
‘determine the a.,set’s recoverablc- amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.

- If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.

-"That mcreased amount ‘cannot exceed the carrymg amount: that would have been. ... ..~
determined, net of ; deprecratron and- amortrzatron had ‘no mpanment Joss been. |
recogmzed for the asset ‘in prior years, : Such reversal. is recogmzed in: proﬁt orloss. .~
" After such a. reversal the ‘depreciation and amortrzatlon charge is adjusted in future - =

perrods to allocate the asset’s’ revised carrymg amount, less. any res1dua1 value, on a'_.‘
remammg useful th L T

" :Cagltal Stock ' ‘ o Ll T
Capital stock is classified as equrty Addrtlonal pard in. capltal is recogmzed for the "

. excess of proceeds of ubscnptrons over the par value of the shares 1ssued

o Incremental costs dxrectly attnbutable to the issuance of ordmary shares and share'_' _ a
- options are recognxzed asa deductron from equlty, net of any tax effects ' -

.-l
1

' ’RetamedEamm s eficrt o I I g " : : ' .
Retained earnings (deficit) include all current and pnor penod results as reported in proﬁt :
or loss net of dlvrdend payments to stockholders - _ L :

Revenue and Expgnse Recoggltlon Lo i s
 Revenues . .. $ Sl : A .
Revenue compnses the mvorced value on the sale of goods net of value-added taxes, SO
'remrnsanddrscounts 1fany N IO b o B S

v The Group recogmzes the _revenue when the amount of revenue can be rehably measured,f o
it s probable that future economic benefits will flow into the entlty and specrﬁc crrtena’, FRIRE

o have been  met for each of the Group s act1v1tres as descnbed below

L fThe amount of revenue is not'consrdered to be rehably measured untrl all contmgenc1es S

relating to the ‘sale have been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on historical

results, takmg mto consrderatron the type of customer, the type of transactlon and the
_ _speclﬁcs of each a.rrangement N R I T

. b
ASaleofGoods A ! Lo . _
The Group manufactures and sells a wrde range of paper cartoons and packagmg -
materials in the domestic market. “Sale of goods is recognized when the delrvery has
taken place and when srgmﬁcant risks’ and rewards.of ownershrp are transferred to
customers - SELLT : ;

Sale of Serwces ERE RPN ~ : : : : _
Revenue from tollmg servrces is recogmzed m the accountmg penod in whrch the
. .services are rendered, by reference to completlon of the specific transaction assessed cn
:the basis of the’ actual’ serv1ce provrded as a proportlon of the total servwes to be’
: ;provrded o T : ‘ .

) _r_Interest and Other Income
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Cost and Expenses

Costs and expenses are recognized when they occur and are reported in the consolidated
financial statements in the periods to which they relate. Interest expense on the
borrowings is calculated using effective interest method by applying effective interest
rate.

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income for the period attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted-average number of issued and ouistanding
common shares during the period.

For the purpose of computing diluted EPS, the net income for the period attributable to
equity holders of the Company and the weighted-average number of issued and
outstanding common shares are adjusted for the effects of all potential dilutive
instruments

Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability
is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined Benefits Plan

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefits plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of the future benefit that employees have earned in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan asssts.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed on a periodic basis by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in
a potential asset for the Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present velue of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan.

The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement cf a defined berefit plan when
the settlement occurs.

Remeasurements of the net defined retirement obligation or asset, excluding net interest,
are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. Net defined retirement
benefit obligation or asset comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets,
excluding interest, and the effect of the asset ceiling, if any. The Group determines the
net interest expense or income on the net defined retirement obligation or asset for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit retirement
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined retirement
obligation or asset, taking into account any changes in the net defined berefit retirement
obligation or asset during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments.
Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in
profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized

immediately in profit or loss.




. -Transactions and Balances

Fdrelgn Currency Transacttons and Translatro L
Ve ) . !

._Forergn currency (transactlons are translated into . the' functlonal currency usmg the-' .
exchange rates prevallmg at the dates of the transactlons ‘Foreign exchange gains and -

~ losses resultmg from the settlement of such n-ansactlons and from the translation at year- -
~end exchange rate .of outstandmg monetary assets and lxabxlltles denommated in foreign *

- currencies are recogmzcd in the consolldated statement 'of comprehensrve income under ,"5
other expenses/mcome LAY e S v :

A.ILmeTge_s

. Income tax expense,:for the year is. composed of current_-and deferred tax. Income tax":f} f

o vCurrent tax 1s the

"~ expense'is- recognlzed in profit ‘or loss except to ‘the "extent that ‘it relates to items

recognized . directly - in " equity ‘or other’ comprehenswe .mcome in. Whlch case itis - o

recogmzed in equity or other comprehensrve mcome

pected tax payable on the taxable income for the year usmg tax rates
-enacted or substantlvely enacted at the reportmg date and any adjustment to tax payable 4
,m respect of prevrous years . L A S

Deferred tax s’ ,cogmzed m-:respect of temporary drfferences between the carrymgi_:'
- amounts of assets and habllltles for fmancral reportmg purposes and the amounts used for S

- The carrymg amount of deferred tax assets is revrewed at each reportmg date and reduced .
" ‘tothe, extent that it is no longer probable that sufﬁclent taxable profit will be available to-

~ allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecogmzed deferred tax assets
" are reassessed at each. reportmg date and are. recogmzed to the extent that it has become :
probable that future taxable proﬁt wrll allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

3 Deferred tax assets and habrhtles are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply SR,

in the year when the asset is realized or the 11ab111ty is settled, ‘based on tax rates (and tax _
laws) that have been enacted or substantrvely enacted at the reportmg date o :

. o vDeferred tax llablhtles are recogmzed for all taxable temporary dlfferences except

o = - where the 'deferred tax habll_lty arises from the mmal_recogmtlon of goodwﬂl or of an L
. asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of . - *

B » taxable entlty and the same taxatron authonty

g ".the transactlon ’affects nerth r the accountmg proﬁt nor. taxable proﬁt or loss and

. "'_bw1th respect to: taxable emporary' dlfferences assocrated w1th mvestments i
“subsidiaries,  associates -and interests - m joint ventures “where ‘the timing of the ~ ¢
. reversal of the temporary drﬁ'erences can be controlled and it 1s probable that the

o ftemporary drfferences w1ll not reverse ‘inthe foreseeable future R

U Deferred tax assets and habrhtles are offset, ifa :legally enforceable nght exists to set oﬁ'
: “current tax assets against current tax lrabllrtles and the deferred taxes relate to the same

B Value-added Tax (VAD Rcvenues, expenses and“assets are recognrzed net of the amount R

' of VAT except

. '_where the tax mcurred on a purchase of assets or serv1ces is not recoverable from the

" taxation authorlty, in whlch ‘case the tax is’ recogmzed as.part of the cost of |
L "acqu1s1t1on of the_asset oras part of the expense 1tem as apphcable and SRR

o .recelvables and payables that are stated wrth the amount of tax mcluded




B as part of recervables or payables in the consohdated statements of ﬁnancral posrtron -

: ; Prov1srons are recogmzed only when the Group has a present (legal or COIlStI’lICthC)‘E
~.obligation as a result.of a:past event, it!is probable that ‘an .outflow of resources

..* - embodying -economic benefits will be requrred to settle the obligation, and a reliable .

-+* estimate can be made of the amount of the oblrgatlon If the effect of the time value of -

* . money is material, provisions ‘are: determmed by. dlscountmg the expected future cash L
.- flows at pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money -~
= 'and, where appropnate the nsks speclﬁc to the hablllty ‘When dlscountmg is used, the *

- ‘increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recogmzed as an interest expense.

R estlmate

: -:'.:50p_erat1ng Segr_r_t ent .

] Provisions are revrsxted at’ each reportmg date and ad_lusted to reﬂect current best "

- =Related Pm Transactron L o ' : ‘
" Parties are considered to be related 1f one party has the abrhty, dxrectly or mdrrectly,

The net amount of tax recoverable ﬁ'om or payable to, the" taxatlon authorrty is mcluded S

.. control the other party or exercise. srgmﬁcant influence ‘over the other party in making . - -
" financial and’ operatmg ‘decisions. Partics.are’ also considered to be related if they are
- subject to common control." Related: partres may be individuals or corporate entities.
- Transactions between related- partles are on an arm s length ba31s in 2 manner sn:nllar to“

= '_,i.'_:;transactrons wrth non-related pa.rtles

s "An operatmg segment isa group of assets and operatlons engaged in provrdmg products o

'+ or services that are subject to risks-and retums that are different from those of the other: _ ]

, Bt operatmg segrnents A geographlcal segment is engaged in providing product or services
. .- within a particular economic environment that are sub_]ect to risks and returns that are
= dlﬁ'erent from those of segments operatmg in other economlc envnonment (N ote 24)

o _ performance of the operatmg segments of the Group

Sl

Operatmg segments - are reported in a manner con51stent wrth the . mtemal reportmg R

o provrded to the chief operating decision maker The chief operating decision-maker, who

~-is responsible for. allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating S

segments has 1dent1ﬁed as the chref executrve ofﬁcer that makes strategrc decrsrons

Operatmg segments are reported in a: manner consrstent w1th the mtemal reportmg'

. provided tothe  chief executive officer who allocates resources to and assesses the [__»' i

‘ .

_ _.All transactlons between busmess segments and mtra-segment revenue and costs are = .
- eliminated upon | ‘consolidation. .. Income - and -expense directly associated thh each s

B -fsegment are mcluded in determmmg busmess segment performance o

Contmgencre

_*.Contingent: hablhtles'are not recogmzed in the consohdated ﬁnancral statementsbutare ¢
.7 disclosed in the notes to the consolidated ﬁnanc1a1 statements unless the possibility of an

. outflow of resources embodying economic benet‘ ts is remote. Contmgent assets are not .

- .recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the = . .
T consohdated fmanclal statements when an mﬂow of economrc beneﬁts is probable R

Events AﬂertheLnortngate B R R : :
.".Post year-end events that provide. addrtronal mformatlon about the ‘Group’s posmon at’

- “the reporting” date” (adjusting events) -are ‘recognized .in the consolidated financial =" 8

statements. Post year-end events that are not adjustmg events are drsclosed in the notes to‘

. the consolidated financial statements when material.
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4 Srgmﬁcant Accountlng Judgments, Estlmates and Assumptrons

The preparatlon of the Group s consolrdated f'mancral statements in accordance wrth o
PFRS requires management ‘to make Judgments ‘estimates and assumptrons that affect the = .- -
:apphcatlon .of ‘accounting ‘policies and the !amounts of . assets,- liabilities, income and =~ :: ¢
expenses reported in the consolidated fmancral statements at the reporting date. However, . - °

uncertainty about these judgments; estimates, and assumptlons could result in an outcome L
that could require’a’ materral ad_)ustment to the carrymg amount of the aﬁ'ected asset or a i
Alrablhtymtheﬁlture a‘j_ S L o L ST

' Judgments and estrmates are contmually evaluated and are based on hrstoncal expenence R
and other factors, ’ mcludmg .expectations of future ‘events .that are believed to be i
. reasonable under the circumstances. Revrsrons are recogmzed in the penod in whlch the RS
T Judgments and estrmates are revrsed and in any future penod affected A

. Estlmates and Assumptrons DT RTINS S - S

~ The key estimates and assumptron., used m the consohdated ﬁnancral statements are . g

- based upon management’s evaluation’ of relevant facts and-circumstances as of the date "
- of the consolrdated ﬁnancral statements Actual results could drﬁ'er from such estrmates o

’ "Allowance for Impatrment Losses on Recervlables' ' Provrsrons are made for specrﬁc and EE
.. groups of accounts, where objectrve evidence of impairment exists. The Group evaluates . -~ . .
..~ . these accounts on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These -~ -
""" factors include,  but are not limited to, the Jength of the Group’s relationship with the ...
“related party, average age of accounts, !collectron -experience  and * historical loss © .
-experience. The amount and timing of the recorded expenses for any period would differ - -~

if the- Group made different _]udgments or utlhzed dlﬁ'erent methodologles ‘An increase .

in - the “allowance " for impairment - losses Iwould increase the recorded seIlmg and o

admmlstratlve expenses_ and decrease current assets. - - :

” The carrymg amount of ,reeelvables amounted to P183 032 and P186 483 as at'f_ e
December31 2013 and 2012, respectrvely (Note 6) ol , v :

_ zves of roperty and qulzpment : . DR

.. The Group estnnates the useful lives of property and equlpment based on the penod over

" .which the :assets :dre e)tpected to be. available for use. .The estnnated useful lives of .. - =
" ‘property’ and equrpment are reviewed perrodrcally and ‘are updated if expectations differ =~ = "

from previous estimates due to physwal ‘wear and- tear, techmcal or commercral -

' _obsolescence and gal or, other lnmts on the use of the assets. S . "

'In addrtlon estnnatron of the useful hves of property and equrpment is based on
collective’ assessment of 1ndustry practice, mtemal technical evaluation and experience
‘with srmrlar assets? Tt i is possible, however, that future financial performance could be .
~materially . affected by changes in- estimates brought about by changes in factors -
_ mentioned above. ‘The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period wouldbe - - .
. affected by ‘changes in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated <
" useful lives of property, plant and equlpment would mcrease recorded costs and expenses -
- 'and decrease noncurrent assets ; : SERI e

.'The carrymg amount of the Group s property and equrpment as at December 31 2013 e
. and 2012 amounted to Pl7 845 and P48 971 respect1 ely (Note 10) ' o '




e deﬁned benefit retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined '

~ _'The Group determmes the appropnate dlscount rate at the end' of each reportmg penod R

~cash ontflows expected to be requrred to settle the retlrement obhgatxons -In determining -

L maturity of - these b nds should. approxnnate the ,_'t'rms Of the related retlrement__* .'

e current market condltrons

L ﬁ,':. vAs at December 3 :

o .'Impazrment of Non-ﬁnanczal Assets

e

: ’»Present Value of Def ned Beneﬁt Retzrement Obltgatzon The present value of the"._j--:'

" on an actuarial basrs 'usmg a number of assumptions. These assumptlons are described in i ey
: ‘Note 14 to th ﬁnan lal statements and mclude dlscount te a and salary mcrease rate. . o

is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future -

- the ‘appropriate discount rate, the Group consrders the interest rates on government bonds o
that are denomlnated in the ‘currency in whlch the benefits will be paid.” The terms to . -

' Other key assumptlons for the defined benef' t"retrrement.obhgatxon are based in paxt on:

S :'.._Whrle 1t 1s beheved that the Group s assumptlons are' reasonable and appropnate"f__:; .
' ”"mgmﬁcant differences in’ actual ‘experience or s1gmﬁcant changes in assumptlons may' SERERR
materlally aﬂ'ect the Group ) defined benef t retuement obhgatxon o g

g

012 retlrement llablllty' ounted to P3 3 14 (N ote 14)

. PFRS ‘requires that an impairrient review. be ‘performed on prepald expenses “and other S

. “current ‘assets, _ assets held-for-sale, - property "and "equipment and avarlable-for—sale g

e financial’ assets when events or changes’ m circumstances indicate that the carrying .

~amount may ot be recoverable. Determmmg ‘the ‘recoverable amounts of these assets i i- - -
requires the estimation of cash flows expected to. be. generated from the continued use

_ and ultimate dlsposmon of such assets. While it is believed that the assumptionsusedin -+ -

. the estlmatxon of fair values reﬂected in the fmanc1al statements are appropriate and . R

EEE reasonable, srgmﬁcant changes in- these assumptxons ‘may matenally affect the =~ 7]

'.materlal adverse 1mpact on the ﬁnanclal perf?rmance

assessment _of recoverable amounts and any ‘resulting. 1mpaument loss could have a " i

: Based on the assessment of the Group, certam non-ﬁnancnal assets are. to be provrded: e

with". allowanice ; ‘for . impairment, - Combmed ‘allowance - for impairment for ffsg
o non-ﬁnancxal assets amounted to P222 472 mxlllon as at December 31 2013 and 2012 L

. _‘_-'As at’ December 31 2013 and 2012 thEe combmed carrymg amounts of prepald .

- expenses and other current assets, ‘assets’ held-for-sale, property and ‘equipment ‘and " B
avallable-for-sale ﬁnanclal assets amounted to P4l8 202 and P391 813 mrlhon as at S
December 31 201 . ; ey




" 6 Recervables

Thls account consrsts of .

| ""-'201'3 -

2012

Trade recelvables
" Third partles
Related partle

P71,282, L

| P63,030 .
C 95471
74,975

' Other recelvables

| :Less: allowanc'e‘for imbairmentlo"sses” L

(48,726)

233,476

 aesen

R :‘_:‘_.P183,032

P186,483

2012 |

C Balance at begmmng of year
. Provisions =

Pa4s
02,619 . o
L (371 T

Foreign exchange effect on translatlon o

‘Balance atend of year -+

P46993

7. Inventones

'I'hrs account consrsts of

2012

» Work-m process
" Raw matenals

p4s36

128312

28865 .

Matenals and supplres '

At net reallzable value"

161, 713 N

10688

Fmrshed goods net of mwsron of P675

P172,401

S The above m : ntones were pledged as collateral to the Group s borrowmgs in 2012

‘ :

g Based on the management’s assessment of its mventory condrtron and net realxzable f
value, a prov1s1on for mventory obsolescence was recogmzed m 2012 amountmg to

~ P675 (Note 17)

_ As at December 31 2013 the Group has no m\}entorysince SMPC was already

sold.




8 Prepald Expenses and Other Current Assets

Thrs account consrsts of L

2012

Credrtable w1thholdmg tax
. Input VAT :

88,098 -
35,005

2,101

Other prepayments e

- UP117,622

TP125204 ]

: “ o, Assets Held-for-Sa]e

) ‘.__:As at December 31 2013 and 2012, the Group has remammg assets and shares of stocks HENRE
- in an associate classrﬁed as assets held-for-sale which are subject to disposal under the - ..
-provisions of.the Amended Agreement in 2010 as discussedin Note 1. The assets and L

- shares with detalls below are measured at carrymg amount WhICh is lower than fair value .

. v‘.'._less cost to sell

‘ ,_:: Invesnnentm Land and land
Assoclate Irgprovements Improvements

: Bu.ildingi and *
Building

~ Total

" Cost of Assets e
. Japuary1,2010 .~ -

' P417,779.:‘

P536,312 -

Accumulated Share in Net IR &

: Losses - ..
- . January 1,2010

for the year

e -:'(23,01'3) j
S Sharemﬁnancxalperformance SDEINCE RIS £ R

“esivh

p9411'-'. E Pll7,592l‘

U (8,013)

s

- (83210), - e

(83210) |

AlloWance for im;ﬁairh’ient :

'(199’767) Lo

(22,705)

@047

- Carrying amountreclassrﬁed as I S
s _134,802:5_ L

' asset-held-for sale in2010

94,887

230,630

. Asset-Held-for—Sale S

" Additions/disposals

1348025 ¢

l~'

e 1 -

94,887

December 31,2011. -

Drsposalsm2012 R b
| : 413835).‘ S

" Write-off -

134, 802 .

(118)1:_;_*_‘ T et :_','f?'.} SRR .

. 94,887 -

230,630
7(118)

: December 3, 2012 S
- Additions il

120,849 oo 941

ss97 i L T

94,887 . 2
.- 55,197

216,677

. December 31,2013 -

176,046 - 941 .

94,887

271,874

o Net Book Values . .
: December 31,2012°

P120849 P94l

P94.887

P216,677

. December 31,2013 .- . i

P176,046 - . ."P94L’ . -

P94,887.

- P271,874

(13.835) .




,The mvestment in assocrate represents’ 249 SOO common shares and 738 87(] votmg S
- preferred shares of the Group in SLC, a domestlc land ‘Tholding company organized and .." . .
* incorporated in the Philippines on September 12, 2000.  The Group’s share in results of =
. operations of SLC is based on the Company’s direct 10.22% equity plus the 29.49% -~ .
“aggregate equity in SLC Teld by three (3) wholly-owned subsidiaries. Tn 2010, the "~ "
" Group assessed the fair value of the land based on-zonal value obtained from the < = |
B mumclpal ofﬁce amounted to P134, 802 whlch resulted in recogmtlon of nnpalrment loss, - -

T Dunng 2012 the preferred shares of SLC held by SCPC TPC and STN amountmg to .~ i

‘P118 thousand were ass1gned to Greenkraﬁ Corporation as part of the dacion en pago - ="

~ (Notes 1 and 13). :Such transactions were consrdered non-cash transaction from investing - _

activity in the statement of cash flows. As at December 31, 2012, the carrying value of - -\ 1

~ the investment in shares of stock was also reduced to P120,849 thousand after issuance of " =~

certain certlf cates authonzmg reglstratlon related to ass1gned shares in SLC based on par RORS
'value o ¢ ~ : P R PR R

- In 2013 addltlonal assets of the Company was transferred from property and equxpment 'j: o ,:-j":. o
to assets held-for-sale amountmg to PSS 197 e '

' : Delay in the dlsposal of the asscts was due toregulatory and statutory requlrements bemg j‘
: ;requested from the Group e - : cie

e 10 Property and Equlpment

', 5 Th1s account consnsts of:

\ 'Maclnnery Transportation _' Lea'sehold ST e
. -and '~ and Office -.: andLand -~ .. =~ . .70
Equipment- ' Equipment Improvements' ~ Total

.- Cost . -
'-'Januaryl 2012

.- Additions .
- Disposals - :
o December31 20127
- Additions " -

. Transfers
_Disposals .

: ‘December 31,2013 -

_ »Accumulated Depreclatlon =
-. and Amortization
R ~ Januaryl 2012
O Deprecratxon
Lo © el s Disposalst

P30032° P268889
To8919 19313
et (450) e

© 38,951 . 287,752

Lo oaLs26

L (s 1Ty

’ -(38 951) Q2379

g P219445 Lot
ey

*. 229, 093_ RS
11,526
(58, 197) '

(165 132)
e 20,290 0
' B

'?‘??1830’56”-- 15962 . _'2’6'459"" 230,471
6367 L6 L0 B760 ]
» SO A (450) o (450) v

‘December 31, 2012 o - _194417,,_‘-”“ 16,808 ;-_27556 238,781 .
‘Depreciation . s 1,926 wUE - 1926 )
Disposals -~ C (193 898) (16 sos)*:-* - (27,556) (238,262)'

o December31,2013 . [ .. 2445 0.0 oo ol 2445000
© * Net Book Values ’ ET TR S
“December 31,2012 4__:,P34,676_',’, "1_-?;"? P2,900 < - . P11,395 .P48,9_“71

| ’.‘D_ecembe_rsl,zols,».; | CUPIT845 P o P - PITS4s




For statement of cash ﬂows purposes PlO 503.'of the total addltIOHS amountmg to :
' :P19 313 havebeenpard 5 P T e

I "In 2012 certam property and equrpment of SMPC were used to secure the restructlmng";_-':‘_. o :
e plan under the Collateral Trust Agreement T R

11. Avallable-for-Sale Fmancral Assets

o rThe account consrsts of mvestments in shares of stock of ':’utrlrty compames and PR
golf/country club. membershlps which the Group does not -intend to dlspose m the
short-term and as such were desxgnated as, avarlable-for-sale ﬁnanclal assets S

.These mvestments were measured at falr value based on quoted pnces as at’ ;
December31 2013 and2012 S \ IR

i 12. Trade Payables and Other Current Llabrhtles' :

Thrs account consrsts of

T ams o oo ]
T PT6678 . . P321,671 ...
775030 ,_'- 62,081 -
19,892 19,982 -
(1,560 .- 24579 -
BRI 5964 .
1,964 - 196 ...
P277,597,' | P434,473

_ ,Tradepayables UL S e
_Amounts owed to related partles

- Payable toanassocrate AR

- " -Accrued expenses
- Advances from customers o
.Otherpayables :

Accrued expenses mclude accrued taxes and other payables Accrued taxes pertam to ;o
accrued charges from Bureau of Customs for raw materials nnported payable to other
~ tolling ° customers’ and’ suppliers for- -paper - purchases. Other payables consist mainly of -+
"+ advances from supplrers as payment for the long—outstandmg real property taxes of SCPC B
: o and for workmg caprtal of SMPC ' SO

13. Long-Term Borrowmgs

ThlS account conslsts of

Greenkraft Corporatron SO ET A s 0 P380,578 P380,578

' Roxburgh Investment Llrmted o 187,723 - 187,723
o T l :'P568,301' . P568,301
T :

' The above secured loans were ongmally obtamed ﬁ'om lendmg banks under the Omnibus -~
, Agreement’s revolvmg working capital faclhty subject to annual interest rates prior to
- ‘assignment of.the loan to third parties in'2006.- 'The above creditors/lenders are now .
- . considered related parties of the Company following the dacion arrangements in- 2010 C
F and re-assessment of related party relatronshlp durmg the year (Note l) B




- The property and equnpment of the Company and its sub51d1anes and present and future“'_ .
- receivables and inventories of its subs1d1ar1es are used as collateral in-accordance wrth " R
i the Amended Agreement L o :

T Further the Amended Agreement provrdes for certam afﬁrmatlve and negatrve covenants
" subject for compllance by the Company and ‘its. submdranes and payment terms ‘as °
discussed in Note I which is due after completlon of dacion en  pago or sale of properties .-
. that is expected to complete until first quarter of 2004. _Upon approval of the Amended .
~ -Agreement, the above:creditors are: aware of -the Company s non-compliance with - -
- covenant due to the Company’s fmanclal condltron and sueh wal not be a ground for
' 'default on the Amended Agreement L R : v :

r

As dxscussed in Note 1 the accrued mterest whlch was capltahzed as part of the loan R
principal in 2010 in. accordance with'the Amended Agreement, was condoned by its -7
“major creditors in 2011 amounting to P294.6 mrlhon In addition, the accrued interestin .
2010 amounting to P131,067 was also reversed in 2011 in relatlon to the 2-year grace.
penod provrded by its credltors : e -

14. Retlrement Beneﬁts

The Group mamtams .an unfunded, non-contnbutory, deﬁned beneﬁt penswn plan-f'
covering substantxally all of its regular employees Under the provisions of the Plan, the .
~ normal retirement age. is ‘60, employees, upon reaching retirement age with at least
-5 years of service, can avail of early retirement. Employees covered have a vested rlght R
“to a certam percentage of vretlrement beneﬁts aﬁer cornpletlon of at least 5 years of _:ff7 i
service. : L SN S - S

. The amounts of net retlrement habrllty recogmzed m the consohdated statements of R
o fmanclal posmon are determmed as follows l o R T

N 2012*

_Present v'ah'ié ofdeﬁned' beneﬁt obligations e P3314 -
'I'he movements in the present value of deﬁned benef t obhgatlons are as follows
PR A e | 2012*
- * Balance at begmmng of year - P2,662
- -Current service cost ’ 348
 Interest expense | o 116
. Benefits paid - . (479)
*Settlement gain " - 3 (396)
. Actua.nal losses (gams) ansmg from
Changes in financial assumptions A - (60)
-"Changes in demographic assumptrons -
Experlence adjustments ' - 1,123
. Balance at end of year L P3,314
s restated (Note 3. ¢




. ;. - Settlement gain o
B "j.:"if'Rettrement benefits expense

S _Remeasurement actuanal losses (gams) in other _

- '}Benef ts paid

- ."'-The compo ents of txrement benefits expense are mcluded in “Salanes, wages and_'-i

i_beneﬁts” account under “Operatmg expenses’ m proﬁt or loss are as follows L

. "Current service cost
- Interest expense

S ’A: restated (Note 3)

L The components ‘of . remeasurement ; actu i
. comprehenswe mcome are as follows :

Actuanal losses (gams) arising from
Changes in financial assumptlons s
- .Changes in demographic assumptlons
Experlence adjustments :

63
- (758) 1123

- * Remeasurement actuarial losses (gams) (P270) P1,063 e
. ’Asmstated(Nate.?) P - AL PSR P '

o P33s .i”*."ru4s;9?f;;,;
R T TS § [ TSN
- UPS14 T P68 L

2013 2012*"_. o

| i)ss'l: : (P60) L

_"--.}The movements of etlrement habxhty recogmzed in the consolrdated statements of

| _ lﬁnanclal posntlon are as follows

'2012*-

" Balance begmnmg of year -

" " Retirement benefits expense in proﬁt or loss - - 464 '

: comprehensrve mcome

B '(396)

- Settlement gain - S _
P2,641 - P3314-

- Balance at end of 'y'e'a'r,]f '-

. ‘As reslated (Nate 3)

',The prmclpal actuanal assumptrons used to determme tuement beneﬁts are as follows

. Discount rates .

A‘.' Expected rate of salary mcreases | 3 00% o 4.00%

P2,662 .

06

o013 2012°
T540% - 488%

| "";Assumptlons for mortallty and dlsabxllty rate are based on 1983 GAM Basw Table and AN

. ,"51952 Dlsablllty Study, Perlod 2 Benef t 5 respecttvely




A i,obllgatlon by the amounts below

e Dlscount rate

 Asat December 31 2013 the reasonably p0551ble changes to one of the relevant actuarial -
" assumptions holdmg other assumptrons constant, would have affected the defmed beneﬁt i

. " ‘Defined Beneﬁt B
- Retirement Obligation _
2 1Percent ~ - I Percent
“v‘Increase’ ~ - Decrease -
(P410,455) - P410,374
409858 - (409.927)

Salary mcrease rate '

SR ' R |
o As at December 31 2013 and 2012 the wexghted average duratlon of deﬁned beneﬁt R

- _obllganon is 37. 28 years and 32. 93 years respectlvely

_ Although the analysxs does not take account of the full dlstnbutlon of cash ﬂows“'_'--» ;
expected under the - plan, 1t does :prov1de an,apprommatxon of the sensxtlvrty of the_' I

:The Group has derecogmzed the retn'ement beneﬁts hablhty for 2013 aﬁer the subsrdxary .
carrymg the retrrement beneﬁts llabrhty was sold in 2013 T .

15 Related Party Transactron

ER transactlons are as follows

The Group, in the normal course of busmess ‘has transactrons wrth related paxtres o

" - .Transactions ‘with! related ‘parties  are- made at normal’ “market prices and terms, An .. ¢
~ assessment is undertaken at each financial year by ¢ examining the ﬁnancxal posrtron ofthe .=
'related party and the market in whwh the related party operates ‘ . |

| g
Transactrons w1th related part1es are as follows

; ﬁ}éhaées“fi: . Advances o
P - P100,965 . -
- c 30087

elatlonst o : Year Iy A

" Entities under * (i 2013
' Common Man jement 2012 »

Asat December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 outstandmg balances ansmg from re]ated party : o

" Amounts "Amountsi'--.v, S
oo i Y Owedby 0 Owedto [ coci el :
Relationship Year Related Parties Related Parfies.  Terms - - - Conditions
. Entities under .. L PT5,093 P177,503 - ,Payablelcollectlble " Unsecured; " -
-Common .. © T OP95471 - 62 081___ on demand; non- " no impairment
o Management Vo oo e . interest bearing e
Investment in _ te e 19,892' ,.Payable_on'demand_; Unsecured
L. i 19,892 non-interest bearing - .- -

an Assocmte o .
DR e 2013t PTS003  PE9TA95 Lot ot
' L P95,471 . o P:81’973 R




16. Slgmﬁcant Agreements

T IgllmgAgre_em_emS e o
woor, wer o0 The Group has tolling agreements with- certam customers wherein these customers. w1ll L

fowih.vlio . provide the paper,rolls for the Group to process or manufacture into corrugated fiber
: LR . "7 . board boxes ‘at.‘a guaranteed volume sub_]ect to_the * production  frequency and '
: o o specrficatlons to be agreed by both parties.! For the services provided, the Group will - .
‘receive tolling fees. For 2013 and 2012, tolling serv1ces are made on a per purchase S

) order basxs and reported as serv1ce mcome 3 e

17. Cost of Sales and Services .

This account con31sts of:

2013 2012 2011

" “Cost of Sales - . S B o
Raw materials, Januaryl I 'f P128,312, P208 551 P25,041
 Add: Purchases - T T 565,380 - 376,676 694,079 .
.. Total raw materials - S T ~'-=i-i"""6.93,692 585,227 719,120
. "Less: Raw matenals, December31 -7+ (105,962) - (128,312) 4208 551) o
" Rawmaterialsused - - . o 1707 587,730 0 456,915 510,569 .
“Direct labor '-,5’% s b 19,677 0 0 12,315 14,503
~ Factory overhead =~ . I 44,883 17,471 . 21,093 -
o '---_,»"‘.2‘4_-_'7_652,290 486,701 546,165
o0 4,836 05,313 5,226

~ Total manufactunng cost
- -Add: Work-in-process, Janu uary 1 Y o
- _Total goods available for manufactiring |~ ° © 656,826 - 492,014 551391 . .
.. Less: Work=in-process, December31 ' 2 77(8,104) (4,536) (5,313)
‘Total goods manufactured Lo e 7L 648,722 487,478 ¢ 546,078
Add: Finished goods, Jmugyl ' Lo 11,363 0 . 8,604 9,204
"~ Total goods available for sale . - A i 660,085 . 496,082 - 555282 . |
' ;-Less Flmshed goods December 31 e 7 412 I977) Jll 363) (8,604) -
oLt R T TU7647,108 484,719 - 546,678 .
' .Prov151on for mventory obsolescence 7 (s, 154) 675 -
4 : 7 - P641,954 P485394 P546,678




_ 2012 201175‘5 e

© " Costof Serviees . TEET T b
~ Material used P8794  P22963 P16 868~

-+ Salaries; wages and beneﬁts 4,319 10,921 < 9,993 1 i
- Rent, utilities and ofﬁce expenses S 4,437 - 10,086 - ’7 776
"-Depreclatlon B PR £ | ) 20720 .l6 538 . . 6,4312‘;;'_{:
- Supplies ;. S ©1,623 4,096 - 3,464 |

. Warehousing °°St R e v 002,163 1,497 o ]

" Repairs and mamtenance AR DR 99501916 0 1,999 v |

. Outside services; 5 ..526 1432 . 1,053 . |
~ % Insurance; taxes and hcenses #2380 U575 U496 i
R 61289 49915 -

Dlrect cost of i mvestment propertles
Depreciation | " ¢
Insurance taxes and hcenses -

Pl ;?'\..
BN
H

- e
PG64986  PSAGR PS9EA0

Loy R R
B . N

Detalls of factory overhead for the years ended December 31 are as follows: L

P RO 2013"' oz 2011

P9,678 " - P5,161° . P5243

B o812 1836

D a9 5027 -

2,160 02901
"'1 614 - 1,527 .
648 21

: - 346 - 118

v P44,883-  P17,471 . P21,093 ©

O Udites
T Rentandoﬁiceexpenses
et e - Depreciation <l
- Manufacturing supplles
-~ Repairs and mamtenance
- Qutside services < EL o e
- . Insurance, taxes and llcenses .
~ ‘Power, fuel and oxl ST
‘ others LT

PO L. oo N
RS IR S 0 SN

18 Operatmg Expenses

Thls account consnsts of

: SR IR 'E"i'Note* 201300 2012 2011

U Salanes, wages and employee beneﬁts 4] P10,783 - P5594. - P5705 ..

- Delivery == R ’f‘;_.‘ 7,947 6,354 0 8,824
Representatlon and entertamment V.f.' CTT L5270 0 8,195 3,099 . |
" Insurance, taxes and licenses ‘© A} il DU8160 7 _4,993-, . 03,000 -
" Professional fees, security and outside serv1ces . 4229 4,640

- Rent, utilities and ofﬁce expenses I 5,308 10,440
" Depreciation - ; 440 57
.- Provision for (reversal of) nnpalrment of o N
. receivables DRI
~ Repairs and mamtenance : )
Retlrement beneﬁt mcome =j'_j‘jj-¢ L :(383) . -

- Othes = DA 194 865

G wilni.P43,004 - P37,814 0 P36,690 .

2619 (863 -
o241 - 223 0




= 19 Other Expenses net

Thls account consrsts of 5 _ :
oo ootnii
- -.‘P3 320 PI 401_.-‘ s

s Wnte-oﬁ' of accruals

- Rental income -
" Foreign exchange gam net
. Interest income from banks - K
' Gainon sale of property and equxpment and Ul

: mvestment s :

* -/Gain on'sale of scrap
" Income from refund of dep051t P
- =Reversal of long-outstandmg trade payables -
-+ Condonation of borrowings " - 3

391 1918'_‘ | 2800 ST
R I N AR

T A5,185 e
44 e
2307

307, 686 R

(13980) SRR
- (5) (325_9),_ ek

- (135107) S A
Cgstl 15 ag et
:___(ps4,340) P10,294 - P311,929 -

... Loss ondxsposalofasubsxdnaxy G
- Others net e o

20 Income Taxes

B The componems of the mcome tax expense (beneﬁt) are as follows

a0z
:.':'f_};?9,596 o PLM3 L
551 01
:f“;_PIO,147- z..-..-'(P3,931) BRI

© Current tax expense S
Deferred tax expense (beneﬁt)

- 'The reconclhatlon of the mcome tax expense (benefit) computed at the statutory i mcome
-tax rates to the mcome tax expense recogmzed in prof t or loss isas follows :

L "(1?66,023)' S " P6,825 .

-, Income (loss) before income tax expense ;

|
- Tax statutory tax rate of30% : :
Adjustments to mcome tax resultmg from taxv .
> effects of: - R R
. Losson dlsposal of a subsxdlary

-*‘Movement of MCIT . g
.- Non-deductible expenses _ RN

.. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets on
"~ temporary differences - ' SN
~ Movement of NOLCO A
= -"Interest income subjected to ﬁnal tax |

- 166 o 1,143 . .-
108 6469

- (11021)' EL 2874 R
o179 - (16456)

R (10) B E) R
- P10,047 . (P3,931)




o " Retirement benefits hablhty

MCIT

~ “The Group has unrecogmzed deferred tax assets on the followxng temporary drfferences L

: vand unused net operatmg loss carryover (NOLCO) and credlts (mmnnum corporate
: mcome tax) : : : = |

: 'lzbls a2

' Temporary drfferences S AL : S - .
G Imparrment losses of assets-held-for-sale L - P66,742 - . P66,742.
- Impairment ] losses of investment in associ te

- Impairment losses of receivables |
.- Provision for mventory obsolescence .
Accrued expenses | o 966 966

3 G - T 994
o Allowance for i inventory obsolescence
B Unrealrzed forergn exchange gams R

- 146,135 - - 146,652 -
NOLCO

1,040 ° - 3767

59930 59930
14618 14,098
3879 . . 3879

; Do (159) _:'.'

C009783 L 43373

P156958> . P193,792 |

':.'The Group has NOLCO amountmg to P32 609 as’ at December 31 2013 whlch can be e

camed forward asdeductron agamst future taxable income as‘ follows R

Balance Date of Exprry
Po- 02013
13,039 2014
8,687 2015
: 10,883 - 2016
P44276' (Pll667) - P32609 SR
~T -

Year Incurred

2010
2011 .
2012
2013

Amount E)gnred/Apphed

i ’Ihe Group has MCIT amountmg to PI, 040 as’ of December 31 2013 whrch can be | |

R : camed forward as deductron agamst future taxable mcome as follows :

T i"-Amount Exptred/Apphed :
2000 . PLoas (@l 946) P - 2013
a5 o i 245 2014

| S 113 2016
: '~-"~::13'ZP_2;986.f?f"*"‘-- o (P1 946) ;Pl',040

.:‘The movements of deferrcd tax assets (llab111'|ty) arc accounted‘ for as follows

L s o

' Amount charged to proﬁt orloss. - o i - R P551 . - (P5,074)
' Amount charged to OCI relating to re'neasurement ST e R
- of defined benefit obllgatlon S e 0 T (8D 320

_::Decrease (mcrease)m deferredtax assets (llablllty) o - PATO ‘»-__; ®4,754) - ..

E"E?Balance Date ofEXPll’Y

682 2015




21 Earnings Per Share.

o '.Basw and diluted eammgS/]OSS per COmmon share in ‘centavos "_fibr’the. Stcars 'ended -
P __"~':Dccember3_1 1s_calculatedasfollows Aon T

L Net income (loss) for the year L wrohenan
"~ . available to cormon shares o P287 959 B
Drvrded by weighted average - - e

... number of common shares, in .
j' - absolute number © * T 3 '31,000,000:._:::_:; S
Basrc and drlutedearnmgs/loss N G
pershare ST I A 0.02880;:

e

2011'

: There are no drlutlve shares used in the computatron of the eammgs per shares, hence . f:'

A.- : 8 L basrc earnmgs per share is the same wrth the drlutlve earnmgs per: share N

22 Frnancral Rrsk and Capltal Management, Objectlves and Polrcres

' ~Ob|ect1ves and Policies L e b : . o
" The Group has 51gmﬁcant exposure to the followrng fmancxa.l nsks pnmarrly from 1ts use -
o _of fmancral mstruments : SR . e

quuldrty Rlsk
~Credit Risk"
Market Rrsk

B 'Thrs note presents mformatron about the Group s exposure to each'of the foregomg nsks T

~ the Group’s objectives, policies and processes fi
. -'_ and the Group s management of capltal

r measunng and managmg these nsks

'_.'_pThe BOD has the overall respons1b111ty for the.estabhshment and oversrght of the o
- 'Group srlsk management framework e R AR

-quuzdzty Rtsk. L1qu1d1ty rlsk pertams to the nsk that the Group wrll encounter drﬁiculty '

- in meeting oblrgatlons assocrated with fman
__ _cash or another fmancral asset ' -

’ The Group s objectrves in managmg its" hqurdrty 'rrsk are’ as follows a) to ensure that

" adequate fundrng is available at all times; b) to meet commitments as they arise without

- incurring unnecessary. costs; ‘) to be able to access funding when needed at the least

B :possrble cost, and d) to mamtatn an adequate tune spread of refmancmg maturrtres R




S management

The table below summarrzes the matunty proﬁle of the Group s ﬁnan(:lal assets and
. financial hablhtles based .on contractual undlscounted payments used for hquldrty

December 31,."20131 co
- -Financial Assets &
- Cash . .o
Recexvables nct ,

" Financial anbihties I TR A P ::;_» _—
Trade payables and other currcnt hablhtles S 277,597_' 277,597 o 271597

: Amount Cash Flow .. - 1Year * 1Year

183032

L Long-termborrowmgs SR R 568901 1194 648 S 24708 0 1,160,940 . .

December31 2012
- Financial Assets s
" Cash - -
Reeelvables net

L Financial anbllmes 3 S
Trade payables and othcr current habllmes B

T e

| A186483j

43413 8344730 434473

. Long-termborrowmgs e us6R3010 1194648 T . 1194648 . o]

' Credit Risk

‘Credit risk is’ the nsk' of ﬁnancxal loss to the Group 1f a. counterparty to a ﬁnancralv o N

mstrument falls to meet its contractual obhgatlons

SO The Group has estabhshed controls and procedures in. 1ts credlt pohcy to determine and‘_"l

" monitor the credit ‘worthiness of its’ counterpartles “The’ Group manages its credit risk -

.- mainly through the apphcatlon of transactlon limits and close risk monitoring. ‘It is the =
" Group’s:‘policy " to :enter . into” transactions with -a - wide dlversny of credrtworthy SR

L counterpartres _to mmgate any 51gn1ﬁcant concentratlon of credxt nsk

. -' The Group has regular mternal control rev1ews to momtor the grantmg of credrt and f' e
management of credlt exposures L ™ w : :

) The max1mum exposure of the Group 0 credlt nsk as at December 31 2013 and "012 RS
. without considering the eﬂ‘ects of collaterals and other rlsk mrtlgatlon techmques 1s'_-
L '-presented below ' R R B

" Cash ~ :
Recelvables net

: -”Carrying Contractual . '.Less'than More than.

" 91,604.--7 PiLeod ¢ PLed B
L

L Carrymg Comtractual " Lessthan - More than =
'i'IAmount" CashFlow lYear _I1Year .- ...

S LT P17117' B U AT IR U
186483 i 186483. . - .

a3 e 01z
P1,604“; B LA VAR
183,032 186,483
Rt v.P18_4,636 0 P203,600




The aglng of recervables at the reportmg dates is as follows

December3l 2013 :}. -

" Amount -

Gross e

Net ' ==

. Realizable

Trade recelvables
"Current - !
Past due

1-30 days o
f', 31-60 days "
© 61-90 days

'_c

' 8189”.-_2, S
w ’15 908,-;- Lo
’ !63087“"- L

: "':I'nrpa‘irmen‘t

v

48,726

" Value -

P136508

8,189
8,066 -
15908
14361

‘More than 36;5} days e

' P231,758 -

."l

-+ P48,726 . P183,032

Decemher'?)li,'ZQIﬁZ E L

Gross.‘:'_f |
L Amount'-ﬂ' -
i -

’Ptzo,ogs LRI A5G I

Impau‘ment - Value

Trade recelvables o
Current ~- x0T
Past due T TR
" 1-30days
. 31-60days ;i o -
6190days |
More than 365 days_

'P120,098

, [10 ossg - 10,088

i ,32113';‘;' TR _' 32,118 -

..157,096 - - 46,993 - 10,103 -

P233,476 - P46,993

The table below shows the credlt quahty of the Group s, ﬁnancral assets as at o
December31 2013 and2012 T _ :

. PastDue -

butnot
Impaired

P - .

46,524
P46,524

NeltherPast Duenorlmg sired e
*,  Medium N
mgl_rcnd ‘- Grade LowGrade .
U PLEMT P .- - P - . P64
' 136,508 - L - R 136,508
Trop1sgaat TP . U PI38I12°

December 31, 2013

" Total-

P1,604
231,758

| P233362

-~ Impaired -

P
48,726

"P48,726

Total :- °

Cashinbank .
Receivables - net -

P

chtherPnstDuenorImgLued
SR . Medrum

. m}‘lﬁﬂdc s _Grade - LowGrade -~ Total * "~

P17,117 P P POINMT

v ! 120098 -

120,098 .
P137215 P - T P137,218

R PlstDue
but not '
Impaired -
P .
66,385
P66,385

December31,2012 .
o - Total

P17,117
233,476

P250,593

Impaired

P .
46,993

P46,993

Cashinbank
Receivables - pet - - -

ORI

It is the Group s pohcy to mamtam accurate and consrstent nsk ratmgs ‘across the
financial assets which facilitates focused management of applicable risks. ‘The Group
. utilizes an- mtemal credit rating system based on its assessment of the quality of the
. financial assets. The Group classrfies its ummparred recelvables mto the following credit -

grades R S P 5

ngh Grade - Thrs pertalns to accounts Wrth a very low probabrlrty of default as..
demonstrated by the customer/debtor long hlstory of stability, profitability and diversity.
~ The customer/debtor has the ability to raise substantial amounts of funds through the

“ public markets The customer/debtor has a strong debt serv1ce record and a moderate use"

' ofleverage S R A _! S e

'Realizable '

P186483




Medlum Grade The customer/debtor has no hlstory of default The customer/debtor has

sufficient liquidity to fully service its debt over the medium term. The customer/debtor R
~ has adequate capital to readily absorb any potenttal lossés from its operations and any - i
reasonably foreseeable contmgencres The customer/debtor reported proﬁtable operatlons NERI

for at least the past 3 years

" Low Grade - The customer/debtor is expected to be able to ad_]ust to th° cyclrca] _' - ,
downturns in its operations. Any prolonged adverse economic conditions would however. .. -

ostensibly create : profitability ‘and 11qu1d1ty issues. Operatmg performance could be

L marginal or on the decline. The customer/debtor may have a history of default in interest

but must have regularized its service record to date. The use of leverage is above mdustry
standards but has contnbuted to shareholder value' - _

N l

MM.RLR - : D
Market risk is the r1sk that the changes in market pnces such as forergn exchange rates

interest rates and other market prices, will affect the Group’s income or the value of its. B
~ holdings in financial instruments. The ob_]ectnve of market risk management is to manage
"~ and control market nsk exposures w1thm acceptable parameters ‘while optrmrzmg the S

‘ return

. A'I'he Group is sub_)ect to forergn exchange rates rrsks

: Forezgn Exchange stk

Foreign exchange nsk is the nsk on the Group s purchases m a currency other than the |

- Phrhppme peso

The ﬁnanctal assets and llabrhtles of the Group are mamly denommated in Plnhppme '

. peso. Thus, the Group s forelgn exchange 1 nsk has been determmed by managernent to

' be mmrmal as at December 31 2013 and 2012

; Capltal Management

The primary objectrve of the Group s caprtal managementts _to ensure that it mamtams a
: ‘strong credit rating and healthy capltal ratlos ln order to support 1ts busmess and

'max1mlze shareholdervalue RERISRE l

'Total caprtal bemg managed by the Group con51sts of capltal addrtronal pard-m capltal_ i

and deﬁcrt as shown in the statement of ﬁnancral posrtron“rfiv

| The Group manages 1ts capltal stmcture and makes ad_]ustments in the hght of changes in

economlc condrtrons ;7‘;-; S f B O .

The BOD has overall responsrbrhty for monltormg caprtal in proportron to risk. Proﬁles

~ for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the Group’s extemal envrronment and
' nsks underlymg the Group s busmess, operatlon and mdustry » :

The Group momtors capltal on the basis of ;debt-to-equ:ty ratlo, whlch is calcu]ated as
total debt divided by total equity. Total debt is defined as total current liabilities and total
noncurrent lrabxhtres whrle equrty 1s total equrty as shown in the separate staternent of
'ﬁnancral posmon ' RSV . o

' "I’here were no changes in the Group 'S approach to capltal management dunng the year..




;e

23 Fmanclal Instruments :

' :-:Cash and Recezvables The carrymg amounts of cash and recervables approxrmate fajr : E o
-{.f-values due to the relatlvely short-term maturmes of these ﬁnancral mstruments B

- __AFSFmanczalAssets . CE : N 3 o
' The fair value of quoted AFS equity securltles is determmed by reference to their quoted : .

- -bid prlces at the reporting date, .The fair values of unhsted AFS ﬁnancral assets are based R
on cost smce there is no reahzable ba51s for farr value ' - oy el

lTrade Payables and Other Current anbzlmes The carrymg amounts of trade payables ' -
~.and other current liabilities approxrmate fau' value due to the relatlvely short—term. RS
S matuntles of these fmanmal mstruments S - . : :

Long-term Borrowmgs AR : I o R
. Long-term borrowings is reported at 1ts present value whlch approxnnates the cash cL
- amounts that would fully satlsfy the obligations as -of reporting date. The- carrymg B
' ;_f amount apprommates falr value smce the mterest rates are reprlced monthly :

24, Segment Informatlon l

L ';The pnmary reportrng format of busmess segrnents are the areas - of operatrons
'_?:compnsmg ‘the manufacturmg of- corrugated ‘carton - contamers and other segment for
' ‘administrative services and lease of propertres The Group’s business segments operate .
-in two main geographlcal areas namely Mmdanao and Cebu. The business segment in
y Mmdanao was sold in 2013 whlle Cebu opera‘tlons has temporanly ceased in 2008

, ‘:'The Group s operatmg segment is onIy its manufacturmg plant in Mmdanao and lease of '
o property wrth the followmg mformatlon in 2013_ 2012 and 2011, respectlvely o

"'-';’52013 | T SN
B IS IR AllOther . |
, Manufacturing - Segments - Total
’ _-"'_Revenues L ConE
: Netproductsales R P < PT10,658
Servnces, rent, ¢ and mterest SR ‘
.- . income. L 3 5400 L 21,049
e Inter-segmentrent and mterest ST
- . -income = i L oo "1--‘*(5 400) o (5,400)
" . Total segment revenues = . - P726307 7 P.- ‘P726,307
- Inter-segment intefest expense’ ~.-°  Pe’ i Pii . 0 P - o

. Total segment operating profit. .~ P61,321 - "° P - - . P61,321 A




e AnOther
L Manufacmﬁng'¢ - Segments . -Total -~ L

"% Revenues:" E R R SR
‘Net product sales ' . . P531,591"

- Services, rent, and mterest B X e

" .income i :

Inter-segment rent and mterest f: A I BUE R L

TR R PR S SRt At (5,400) 0 (5,400)

. -income . C . |
Total segment_revenu‘.es‘ f . P580 449“- S P- .. P580,449
- — o .

P PS3LSOL.

 Inter-segment interest expense . . " IP Z o LTRE P |
" Total segment operatmg profit e .‘:;;_:1322,77_4}_; .- P10,992  P33,766 .. .

2011 B

Tofallv; S 1

. . Revenues; ; R VAR R
Netproduct sales TE " 569,93
Servxces rent, and mterest PREEREE Ee

»income " AL
Inter-segment rent and mterest RSN R
cincome v |
Total segment re\?e'nues'-' ST Pel1283

P569,935
DT 7 S

A0 (s400) |
P Pl |

..+ Inter-segment interest expense’ . . -~ | .P987 -1 P P987
. Total segment 0peratmg proﬁt o ‘;"}'1'1522 7'5'1'- (P9 748) ~ P13,003 -

B ‘ - R _(7_ e |
’ The segment assets and hablhtles for the years ended December 31 2013 and 2012 are as

follows '

M&ﬁﬁfaénuiﬁig" ""An Ottor s
‘Mindanao. Cebu Segment ... Total -~

2013
' Segmentassets B R
Segment habxlltxes I |

; Segmentassetsi. Dot __':396 521 109 614 ‘332,621 - 838,756

.. Segmenthablhtxes*-’ »388 788 - 57 909 559,893 1,006,590 . .
Segment assets e
Segment habllmes '

:P1209627 P493231' P§02,858 -
57990 789985 847975 .

'-f'-ﬁ‘»_'..s._;442613 109614 :;:,,305,186 '-‘,-.357,'413];
551,054 - 57909 425,717 1,034,680




All Oﬂler;g '

The segment capltal expendlture deprecxatlon and amortlzatlon expense for the years e
ended December 31 2013 .2012 and 2011 are as fo]]ows .

Depreclatlon and amortlzatlon expense -

R \'Ianufactunng Segments. Total

2013 - o R G
Capltal expendlture = A : P11 526 Pll 526
Depreclatlon and amortlzatlon expense I 1,926 .. 1,926

2012 AR SN o SR L
Capltal expendlture P T 10 503‘_ . 8810 19313 -
Deprecratlon and amortrzatlon expense-' o 177 - 8,760

2011 SR e
Capltal expendlture : - 154740

10752 : © 83 10,835 -

3 25-';.C_0'mmitments PRI

; In the normal ,course of: busmess, _the
_ comm1tments and contmgent liabilities, such as commitments on claims under litigation -
. whlch are not shown in the financial statements mcludmg pendmg tax assessments that -
_"_ are presently bemg contested I A . :

Group entered mto various - outstandmg L

: In the oplmon of management and based on the advrce of 1ts.‘ extemal legal counsels, the T
- ultimate dlsposmon of the foregoing commﬂments and - contingencies w1ll not have a oo
R 51gn1ﬁcant effect on the ﬁnanc1a1 condltlon or operatmg results of the Group ' '
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'~ REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Stenie! Manufacturing Corporation .

Gateway Business Park . T
Barrio Javalera, Gen. Trias, Cavxte .

- We have audnted in accordance wrth Phlllppme Standards on Audltmg, the consolldated fi nancral

~statements of Steniel Manufacturing Corporation (the “Company”) and Subsidiaries as at and for
the year ended December 31, 2013, mcluded in the Form 17-A and have issued our report
thereon dated April 9 2014 e e e

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial
statements of the Company taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in the
following accompanying addmonal components is the responsnbxllty of the Company s
management .

* Mapofithe Conglomerate
» Schedule of Philippine Financial Reportmg Standards and Interpretatlons

- This supplementary mformatxon is presented for purposes of complymg with the Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended, and is not a required part of the basic consolidated
~ financial statements. Such supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing
' p'rocedures'applied in the audits of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relatron to the basic consohdated financial
statements taken as a whole ' :
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Stenlel quufccfuring Corporoﬁon_dnd Subsidiaries

Frqmework lor the Pteparoﬂon and Presentation of Financial Slofemenis

Conceptual Framework Phcse A: Objectives and quolnaﬂve ) v
characteristics e .
PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary ’ v

Philippine Financlal Reporiing Standards

PFRS 1 First-ime Adoption of Ph‘hppme Fnonc:ol Repomng
{Revised) | Standards . .

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Costofan - .
Investmentina Subsldlory, Jomily Controrled Enmy or 4
Associate R EE

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exempfions for - S 4
First-fime Adopters ‘

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exempfion from - e
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for Firsl-time Adoplers - - s

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinfictionand - o . . v
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters '

Amendments to PFRS 1; Govemment Loans . v o
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment . -+ - SR ; - v

Amendmenis to PFRS 2: Vesling Condilions and ) : _ v
Cancellations

Amendmenis to PFRS 2; Group Cash-seltled Shcre-bosed

Payment Transactions
PFRS 3 Business Combinalions : o L Y
{Revised) . . . o
PFRS 4 Insurance Conlracts . S S v
Amendments to PAS 32 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee v
Contracts
PFRS § Non-curent Assets Held for Sale cnd stconhnued v
" | Operations S : - .
PFRS & Exploration for and Evaluation ot Mineral Resources - : v
PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures ' v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition IR v
Amendments fo PAS 39 ond PFRS 7: Reclassification of -
Financiat Assets :

Amendments to PAS 39 ond PFRS 7; Reclossificationof .| v
financial Assefls - Effective Date and Transition s

Amendments to PFRS 7; improving Disclosures about v
Fingncial Instrumenis

Amendmenis to PFRS 7; Disclosures - Transfers of Fanonciol

Assels .

Amendments 1o PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offseihng Fncncncl -
Assets and Financial Liabiiities s
Amendmenis to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Doie of e,

PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures




PFRS 8

Operating Segments

PFRS ¢

Financial Instruments

Amendments 10 PFRS 9: Mandatory Eifective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transilion Disclosures .

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendment fo PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Amendment to PFRS 10: investment Entities* {effective
January 1, 2G14)

PFRS 1T -

Joint Arangemenits

Amendment to PFRS 11: Transition Guidance

PFRS 12 -

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance -

Amendments 1o PFRS 12: Investment Enfifies* (effechve .
January 1,2014)

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

Philippine Accounting Stondards

PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

(Revlsed) Amendment 10 PAS 1: Capiltal Disclosures
Amendments 1o PAS 32 ond PAS 1: Puitable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendments 10 PAS 1: Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income * : =
Amendments to PAS 1: Comporahve Informohon beyond
Minimum Requirements .
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of the Opening
Statement of Financlal Position and Related Notes

PAS 2 inventories . )

PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

PAS S Accounting Policies, Changesi |n Accounring Eshmates

. and Emors -

PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period

PAS 11 Conslruction Contracts

PAS 12 Income Taxes
Amendment to PAS 12 - Defered Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assetls - :

PAS 16 Property. Plant and Equipment
Amendments 10 PAS 16: Clcssxf’ccﬂon of Servicing
Equipment

PAS17 Leases

PAS 18 Revenue

PAS 19 Employee Benefits . .

{Amended) Amendmentis to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: Emp!oyee
Contributions .

PAS 20 Accounting for Govemment Grants and stclosure of -

Govemment Assistance




The Effects of Changes in Forelgn Exchange Ra?es

Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

PAS 23
{Revised)

Borrowing Costs

PAS 24
{Revised)

Related Party Disclosures

PAS 26

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

PAS27 .
(Amended)

Separate Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 27: Invesiment Entities [etfectwe
January 1, 2014) .

PAS 28
{Amended)

Investments In Associates and Joint Ventures

PAS29

Financiot Reporting in Hyperinflalionary Economies - .

PAS 32

Financial Instrumenits: Disclosure and Presentation

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Putiable Financial - -
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation -

Amendment fo PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issuves -

Amendments {0 PAS 32; lncome tax Consequences of
Distributions : :

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Flnonc:cl Assets ond
Financial Liabflities -

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Finoncial Reporting

Amendments 1o PAS 34: Segment Assets and Liabilities

PAS 36

Impairment of Assetfs

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amoum Disclosures
for Non-Financlal Assets '

PAS 37

Provisions, Confingent Uabumes and Contmgent Assels

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

PAS 3¢

Financial Instrumenis: Recognilion cnd Measurement -

Amendrmenis to PAS 39: Transition and Initial Recognmon
of Financial Assels and Financial Liabiflities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounhng of
Forecast infragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Opfion

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Gucrcntee
Contracts -

Amendmenis to PAS 39 and PFRS 7. Reclossnfcohon of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclossification of
Financlatl Assels - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments 1o Philippine lnlerpretchon IFRIC-9 ond PAS
39: Embedded Derivafives

Amendment 1o PAS 39; Eligible Hedged liems

Amendment to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives ond

Conhnuohon of Hedge Accounfing




lnvesfmenf Property
PAS 41 Agriculture - .
Philippine Interpretations .~ - .
IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommrssuomng, Restorotxon ond
Similar Liabiities ' . . o
IFRIC2 Members' Share in Co-operchve Enhﬂes and Slmllor
Instrumends - - . .
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrongement Contains a lease
IFRICS Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, - '
: : Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC 6 tiabilities arising from Porticipating in a Specific Market -
] Waste Eleclrical and Electronic Equipment . .
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PA$29 - - 7
. Financial Repotting in Hyperinflationary Economies
IFRIC 9. Reassessmen? of Embedded Derivatives
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9 cund
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives .
IFRIC 10 Interim fFinancial Reporting and impairment
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Amangements
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Fundmg
Requirements and their Interaction .
Amendments to Philippine Interpretalions IFRIC - 14,
o Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
IFRIC 18 Hedges of a Net nvestment in a Foreign Operation
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assels o Owners
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers .
FRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Licbilities with Equily Instruments
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
IFRIC 21 Levies v '
Sic-7 - Infroduction of the Ewo
sic-10 Govemment Assistance - No Specmc Relation to
: Operating Activities .
SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives
SIC-25 Income Toxes - Changes in the Tax SIotus of on Enﬂty or
) its Sharehaolders '
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
: Legat Form of a Lease
Sic-2¢9 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures.
SiC-31 Revenve - Barter Tronsochons InvoMng Advertising
Services . .
SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs




r’ﬂ‘!s\l.g? ‘INA#géqg o

[Effective asof De

Phlllpplne lnierpreiaﬂons cOmmiﬂee Quesﬂons and Answers
PIC Q&A - | PAS 18, Appendix, paragraph ¢ - Revenue recognition for
2004-01 sales of property units under pre-completion contracts
PIC Q2A PAS 27.10(d) - Clarification of criterio for exemption from
2005-02 - | presenting consolidated financial stalements -
PIC QRA | PAS 40.27 - Valuaiion of bank real ond other properttes
2007-03 acquired {ROPA] -
PICQLA - | PAS 101.7 - Application of criteria for a qualifying NPAE
2007-04 o : ‘ 4 '
PIC QA PAS 20.43 - Accounting for government loans wiih low
2008-02 Interest rates under the amendments lo PAS20 - -
PIC QLA Framework.23 and PAS 1.23 - Financial stotements
2009-01 prepared on a basis other than going concem
PIC QLA PAS 39.AG71-72 - Rale used in defemmining the fair volue
2010-01 - | of govemment securilies In the Philippines i
PIC Q&A - | PAS IR.14 - Basis of preparation of financial statements
2010-02 oo - - o _
PIC QLA PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Cumrent/non-
2010-03 curent classification of o callable term loan
PIC QSA PAS 1.10(f) - Requirements for a Thlrd Stofement of .
2011-01 ' | Finonclal Position - -
PIC QZA PFRS 3.2 - Common Control Business Combinations .
2011-02 L L o e LT
PIC Q2A Accounting for Inter-company Loans
2011-03 S o : .
PIC Q2A PAS 32.37-38 - Costs of Public Offering of Shares
2011-04 : S . .
PICQRA | PFRS 1.D1-D8 - Fair Value or Revaluation as Deemed Cost
2011-05 : s - _ L
PIC QLA PFRS 3, Business Combinations (2008), and PAS 40, -
2011-06 Investment Property - Acquisition of investment properties
- asset acquisition or business combination?
PIC QLA PFRS 3.2 - Application of the Pooling of Interests Method
2012-01 for Business Combinations of Entities under Common
- | Confrolin Consolidated financial Statements
PIC QR A Cost of a new buillding construcied on thesiteofa -
2012-02 previous building . -
PIC QzA Applicability ot SMEIG Final Q&As on the Apphcoﬂon of
2013-01 - (FRS for SMEs to Philippine SMEs
PIC QLA PAS 19 - Accounting for Employee Benefifsundero -
2013-03 Defined Confribution Plan subject to Requirements of
Republic Act (RA) 7641, The Philippine Relirement Law




STENIEL MANUFACTURING CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

MAP OF THE CONGLOMERATE

STENIEL (NETHERLANDS) HOLDINGS
B.V.
(Ultimate Parent Company)

STENIEL MANUFACTURING
CORPORATION (72.0849%:)
(Parent, a holding company listed in PSE)

=
| _____ASSOCIATE |  STENIEL LAND
CORPORATION
SUBSIDIARIES
TREASURE PACKAGING STENIEL CAVITE PACKAGING
CORPORATION" (100%) CORPORATION®
(100%)

(1) ceased operations in 2008

(2} ceased operations in 2006



. Schedule A ;

- 10,861,383 -

Steniel .Manufacturihg Corporation and Subsidiaries
“. Schedule of Financial Assets
' December 31,2013
(All amounts m thllppme Peso, except number of shares]

N . + Amount shown in Income

_ _ * Numberof < ° the statement of received
Name of Issuing Entity - shares " financial position and accrued
- Available-For-Sale e ey L Co ek .
. PLDT 25,755 . - 257,550 .
Fil-Estate 1 540,000 -
Metro Drug Dnstrlbutlon o 18,333 -
Meralco 13,900 . - 139,000 . - -
~ Manila Water Corp 220,000 5,931,500 -
Melco Crown Plaza 303,000 - 3,985,000 .




Steniel Manufacturing Corporation and Subsidiaries

Amounts Receivable/Payables with Related Parties which are eliminated

during the consolidation of financial statements

December 31,2013

(Al amounts in thousand Philippine Peso)

ScheduleC

Name and designation  December 31,

Addition/ " Assignment/  Written-

Non December 31,
of debtor 2012 . (Deduétion) Condonation -off - .. Current Current 2013 '
Trade receivables : ‘ ' ' '
TPC 197 - - - - - 197
197 - - - - - 197
Trade payables o E . ' _ ‘ _ -
SCPC 6,332 483 - - - 6135 -~ . 483 - 680
TP 55340 O - L - . 55,340
61,672 - 483 . - 6,135 483 - 56,020
Advances to subsidiaries, at gross ‘ e o s : o
SCPC 218,465 1,022 e . 102 - - 219,487
TPC - N .. . . Coe
- 218,465 1,022 e e 1,022 - 219,487
Due from related party Lo T o S ,
TPC 56,380 (39) AT - . 56,341 .
336,714 . 71,466 - - 6,135 1,505 - 332,045



P ST " 'Schedule D
- Steniel Manufacturing Corporation and Subsidiaries : .

- lhtangible Assets - Other Assets

L December 31, 2013 L
.. (All amounts in Philippine Peso) . " -

. S _Chargedto = Chargedto . Otherchanges L
December31, .~ . costand other - additions December 31,

D.escription 2012 - Additions expenses - accounts . - {deductions) 2013
s NONE - -




Steniel Manufacturing Corporation and Subsidiaries

. Long-Term Debts . - .
December 31,2012 and 2013 -
(All amounts in Philippine Peso) -

Schedule E

Amount shown
~ under caption
Amount shown under caption © "Long-term debts"
' S "Current portion of -long-térm in related
Title of issue and type of Amount authorized debts” in related statement statement of
' obligation ' by indenture - " of financial position Lo financial position
Loan 568,301,054 . L . 568,301,054



: V : Schedule F
Steniel Manufacturing Corporation and Subsidiaries

- Indebtedness to Related Parties
. . (Long-term Loans from Related Companies) o
o December 31,2012 and 2013 '
~(Allamounts in Philippine Peso)

Name of related party " Balance at the beginning of period . Balance at the end of period

'.Sh:areholder/key management - o _ S ‘ _
" personnel S o 568,301,054 - - L 568,301,054




Steniel Man_ufacturin‘g Corporation and Subsidiaries

Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuer
December 31,2012 and 2013

-(Allamounts in Philippine Peso) = -~ -

Schedule G

Name of issuing entity of - Title of issues of .77+ Amount owed by

securities guaranteed by each class of , Total amou_ﬁt - person for which
the Company for whichthis - securities =~ guaranteedand .. statement

Nature of -
guarantee '

statement is filed gdaranteed outstanding -~ - s filed -
: : ‘ NONE




Steniel Manufacturing Corporation and S_ubsidiaﬁes

 Schedule of Share Capital
De_cember__31, 2012 and 2013 o
(All amounts in Philippine Peso) ...

- S.che.duleH

I - < . " Numberof N
* Numberof . shares reserved Number of -
_ ~ sharesissued, - - for options, warrants shares held :
. - Numberof - ~subscribed © . conversion and by directors . . - -
. Title of Issue shares authorized andoutstanding = otherrights’ and officers
Common Shares _1,000,000000 © 1000000000 - . . . - 1,000,000,000 -




